'~
CHELTENHAM

Cheltenham Borough Council
Cabinet

Meeting date: Tuesday, 28 May 2024
Meeting time: 6.00 pm

Meeting venue: Council Chamber - Municipal Offices

Membership:
Councillors

Important notice — filming, recording and broadcasting of Council
meetings

This meeting will be recorded by the council for live broadcast online at
www.cheltenham.gov.uk and www.youtube.com/@cheltenhambc/streams
The Chair will confirm this at the start of the meeting.

If you make a representation to the meeting, you will be deemed to have consented
to be filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for
broadcasting and/or training purposes.

If you have any questions on the issue of filming/recording of meetings, please
contact Democratic Services.

Contact: democraticservices@cheltenham.gov.uk
Phone: 01242 264 246



http://www.cheltenham.gov.uk/
http://www.youtube.com/@cheltenhambc/streams
mailto:democraticservices@cheltenham.gov.uk

CHELTENHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

SECTION 1 : PROCEDURAL MATTERS
1 Apologies

2 Declarations of interest

3 Minutes of the last meeting (Pages 5 - 14)

4 Public and Member Questions and Petitions

Questions must be received no later than 12 noon on the seventh working day
before the date of the meeting

SECTION 2 :THE COUNCIL
There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by the Council on this occasion

SECTION 3 : OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on this occasion

SECTION 4 : OTHER COMMITTEES
There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by other Committees on this occasion

SECTION 5 : REPORTS FROM CABINET MEMBERS AND/OR
OFFICERS

5 Updated Climate Action Plan (Pages 15 - 58)

6 Rent Support Grants to Voluntary Sector (Pages 59 - 74)

SECTION 6 : BRIEFING SESSION
e Leader and Cabinet Members

7 Briefing from Cabinet Members

SECTION 7 : DECISIONS OF CABINET MEMBERS
Member decisions taken since the last Cabinet meeting



CHELTENHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL
SECTION 8 : ANY OTHER ITEM(S) THAT THE LEADER
DETERMINES TO BE URGENT AND REQUIRES A DECISION

Section 10: BRIEFING NOTES

Briefing notes are circulated for information with the Cabinet papers but are not on
the agenda



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3
Page 5

CHELTENHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Cheltenham Borough Council
Cabinet
Minutes

Meeting date: 2 April 2024

Meeting time: 6.00 pm - 7.15 pm

In attendance:
Councillors:

Rowena Hay, Peter Jeffries, Victoria Atherstone, Flo Clucas, Mike Collins,
lain Dobie, Martin Horwood and Alisha Lewis

Also in attendance:

Gareth Edmundson (Chief Executive)

1 Apologies

Apologies were received from Councillor Wilkinson.

2 Declarations of interest

As Honorary Club Secretary of the Cheltenham Tigers Rugby Club, who are
mentioned several times in the report, the Cabinet Member for Cyber, Regeneration
and Commercial Income declared a non-pecuniary interest in, Agenda item 9.

3 Minutes of the last meetings
13 February 2024

The Cabinet Member for Customer and Regulatory Services made two corrections:
- he declared an interest in Agenda Item 8, not Item 7;

- Under Item 6, a statement in the first paragraph is misleading, relating to the
delegation of powers. The minutes state "It will take the form of an examination”
which appears to relate to the proposal in front of Cabinet; this isn't right. It
should say "There will be an examination,..."



Page 6

With these corrections, the minutes were approved as a true record and signed
accordingly.

23 February 2024

These minutes were approved by Members and signed by the Leader as a true
record.

4 Public and Member Questions and Petitions

There were none.

5 Cheltenham Ice Rink

In the Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Culture, Tourism and Wellbeing’s
absence, the Leader read out his introduction, saying that the 2023-24 ice rink set
new standards in the town and wider events industry, , welcoming 31Kk visitors,
bringing £1.6m to the local economy (including £860k additional spend as a result of
the ice rink), creating new jobs and supporting others.

In addition, the council kept its pledge not to use diesel generators, using vegetable
oil and battery-powered method instead, provided by a business based in Imperial
Square. This reduced the carbon footprint by 98% compared with 2021, and is being
shared as an example of best practice with other event organisers.

If approved by Cabinet, the planning committee will need to consider varying the
condition on last year’s permission to allow the use of this technology again, until
electric power is installed in the Gardens. Cabinet is also asked to approve a
financial commitment to this year’s ice rink, and delegation of responsibility to
officers charged with managing the project.

The Cabinet Member for Communities and Safety thanked the Cabinet Member for
Economic Development, Culture, Tourism and Wellbeing and all those who made it
possible for 600 children and young people who would otherwise have been
excluded to share in this experience in 2023. She said the council runs the town for
the benefit of the people, and hoped this would be repeated this year.

The Cabinet Member for Housing noted that there were no complaints from
neighbours about noise from generators, which had been an issue in the past. She
said the innovative technology really is a great step forward, resulting in a vast
reduction in emissions.

RESOLVED THAT:

1. the information about the outputs of the 2023-24 ice rink is noted;

2. in advance of planning permission being considered by the Planning
Committee and noting the costs and risks set out in this report, Cabinet



Page 7

approves that Cheltenham Borough Council leads the delivery of an ice
rink in Cheltenham for the 2024-25 Christmas period,;

3. Subject to planning permission, extension to the contract for delivery
and management of the Christmas Ice Rink at Imperial Gardens,
Cheltenham for 12 months is approved;

4. atotal potential financial commitment as set out in section 4 of this
report is approved;

5. Cabinet notes that officers are progressing procurement and delegates
appointments of contractors to the Director of Communities and
Economic Development, as per section 5 of this report.

6 Discretionary Business Rates Relief

The Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets introduced his report,
saying that the government’s autumn statement confirmed that relief
would continue. It was originally a Covid measure but a lot of
businesses still need help — 600 of the 4,000 properties assessed for
business rates in Cheltenham are entitled to assistance. He hoped that
the long-awaited business rates review would materialise at some point
soon.

The Cabinet Member for Housing commented that although it is great that this
funding to support businesses is available, it is a huge shame that the businesses
still need support and are not fully recovered from the last few years. She hoped
that the support would continue for as long as it was needed.

RESOLVED THAT:

1. the Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Relief scheme 2024 as detailed in
Appendix 2 is approved.

2. the Head of Revenues and Benefits, in consultation with the Cabinet
Member Finance and Assets, is authorised to implement any changes to
the reliefs detailed in appendix 2 as required by Government or to
ensure the successful operation of the scheme.

3. Due to the volume of cases, decisions relating to the application of
these reliefs are delegated to the Head of Revenues and Benefits and
officers in the Business Rates team. In the case of a dispute
reconsideration is to be made by the Deputy Chief Executive and
Section 151 Officer.



Page 8
7 Discretionary Housing Payments Policy

Introducing his report, the Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets said this scheme
is for recipients of housing benefits or people on universal credit needing additional
support. He said it doesn’t represent a vast sum of money, and the council is fully
compensated through the Department of Work and Pensions. The policy hasn’t been
updated since 2018, but there are no major changes.

The Cabinet Member for Housing thanked the Cabinet Member for Finance and
Assets for his report, saying she was shocked at the number of residents struggling
with no-fault evictions and having to find alternative affordable accommodation in
Cheltenham. Despite the first increase for many years in the local housing
allowance, there doesn’t appear to be a single property in Cheltenham that is
covered by the new rate. Although grateful for the additional funding, she is
concerned that it is not enough and her heart goes out to those struggling to find
accommodation.

The Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets shared her concerns, saying that the
small amount of additional money was welcome, but also indicative of the broken
system after decades of housing crisis.

RESOLVED THAT:

1. the Discretionary Housing Payment Policy in Appendix 2 is approved

2. decisions relating to the award of Discretionary Housing Payments, in
line with the policy and DWP guidance, are delegated to the Head of
Revenues and Benefits and designated officers within the Benefits team,
with the final decision in the event of dispute being taken by the Deputy
Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer.

3. the Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer is authorised to
apply to DLUHC for an accounting direction if it appears that the annual
allocation will be exceeded in any financial year

8 Employee and Councillor Domestic Abuse Policy

The Cabinet Member for Safety and Communities introduced her report, which will
be shared with key members of staff at the council, and with Councillors Chelin and
Harman, who are advocates for safeguarding and domestic abuse. She said
assistance will be available not only for staff but also for councillors should they need
it, and gave assurance that any matter would be completely confidential under the
terms of the policy.

The Leader commented on the importance of this type of policy, supporting staff and
councillors, to ensure people feel safe and understand that the council won’t tolerate
this kind of behaviour.



Page 9

RESOLVED THAT:

1. the Employee and Councillor Domestic Abuse policy is adopted.

9 Physical Activity and Sports Strategy, Phase 2

On behalf of the Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Culture,
Tourism and Wellbeing, the Leader was happy to introduce his report on
the long-awaited Physical Activity and Sports Strategy. She began by
saying that sedentary lifestyles pose a huge threat to us all, not only on
a personal and physical basis but also through many knock-on effects.
The strategy will help the borough decide how to assist people to leave
more active and healthy lives.

She said the strategy’s phased approach started with a wide range of stakeholder
groups defining their needs, then moved to a more technical assessment of facilities
available, carried out by expert consultants. This showed that Cheltenham is
generally well-served but there are specific pinch points such as all-weather pitches.

Looking at the larger municipal facilities, the long-term renewal of Leisure@ and the
Prince of Wales Stadium will be part of the action plan — this will bring challenges,
but also opportunities for new facilities and partnerships, not least because the
Prince of Wales Stadium is a regional facility, not the sole responsibility for CBC.

The report demonstrates that cost is a barrier to many people’s involvement in
physical activity and sport, and also highlights the good work already done in
partnership with others, such as the Feed Cheltenham Leisure Pass.

She ended by saying that the five recommendations cover a lot of ground, and set in
train several major workstreams.

The Cabinet Member for Cyber, Regeneration and Commercial income made the

following comments:

- Cheltenham Tigers Rugby Club is a wonderful and inclusive facility for everyone,
but unfortunately, boys and girls have to form separate teams from the age of
11, resulting in many girls dropping out of the sport as there are not enough of
them to make up teams;

- The newly-formed wheelchair team is doing well and has joined a national
league, but sadly struggles to find venues to train and play in Cheltenham, the
only option being at Balcarras School, which is indoors and has the right floor
surface. We need to do more than we currently do to ensure sport is inclusive
for everyone;

- The maps and charts in the report by Max Associates are very difficult to follow,
particularly for anyone with a hidden disability. They are not respecting their own
barriers and need to be more inclusive in this respect.



Page 10

The Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency said the strategy dovetails with the
work of the climate team, and its focus on aspects of Cheltenham that everyone
loves and wants to pass on to future generations. She said Leisure@ is expensive
to run and high costs make entry unaffordable for many, but conversations are
underway on how to retro-fit, make the site more sustainable, and keep costs down.

The Cabinet Member for Housing thanked everyone who had worked hard in
producing such an insightful report. She noted with interest the references to
developing relationships with schools to maximise every sporting space, but
commented that halls with high ceilings are not needed for some activities such as
yoga and Pilates — these activities could be located elsewhere, maximising the use
of school sports facilities for activities which do require high ceilings. She also
commented that more investment in pitches in North and West Cheltenham is
needed, but was looking forward to the next stage of the strategy, this report having
provided some excellent material to move forward.

The Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets made the observation that, due to the
local authority funding crisis, many towns around the country don’t have any facilities
or strategy, and regretted the disparity. He was, however, grateful for everything
going on in Cheltenham, and in particular the free pass for families who can’t afford
to access the facilities. This opens the door to a healthier lifestyle, particularly
welcome as many health outcomes are related to poverty. He thanked the Cabinet
Member for Economic Development, Culture, Tourism and Wellbeing and officers for
the report.

The Leader welcomed the report and looked forward to the next stage of the journey,
using the evidence gathered. She also looked forward to the redevelopment of
Leisure@, remembering when it first opened as a flagship venue in 1972, and the
opportunity to work with a range of partners.

RESOLVED THAT:

2. the findings and recommendations from the Max Associates’ Built
Leisure and Sports Facilities Report as set out in section 4 and attached
as appendix 2 is noted

3. the provisional findings and indicative recommendations from stage C
of the Playing Pitch Assessment as set out in section 5 is noted

4. theinitial findings from the Physical Activity Survey as set out in section
7 is noted

5. that areport will be brought back to Cabinet to agree and finalise the
playing pitch strategy, along with the over-arching physical activity and
sports strategy and accompanying action plan that will deliver the
Council’s vision and outcomes for physical activity and sports as set
out in section 3 is noted



Page 11

6. consultants to undertake an options appraisal of the future provision of
Leisure at Cheltenham and the Prince of Wales stadium to include
indicative capital costs is commissioned.

10 Cotswolds Beechwood Mitigation Strategy

The Cabinet Member for Customer and Regulatory Services introduced the item as
set out in his report, explaining the background and why mitigation measures were
being introduced to protect the Cotswold Beechwoods, an extensive area of ancient
beech woodland between Birdlip and Cranham. The strategy will take two
approaches — Strategic Access Management and Monitoring (SAMM) to encourage
people to find other green places to go, and Suitable Alternative Natural Green
Spaces (SANGS) to encourage councils to acquire new areas that can be made
accessible as alternatives to the beechwoods.

The cost is quite steep — SAMM £193, SANGS £493, administration £125, totalling
£798 per new dwelling — and applies to all new developments, whatever the size, but
is significantly cheaper than the charges levied elsewhere.

The second part of the recommendation is for the development of a specific action
plan to implement the policy in Cheltenham, looking at sites already owned or
managed by CBC and raising awareness of less well-known green spaces in the
borough.

The Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets wholly supported the report, but was
concerned that all the liability for funding to protect these areas will fall to the
developer, in addition to the existing S106, CIL, highways, education and public art
contributions, all of which are taken into consideration before affordable housing. He
has flagged this as part of the Strategic and Local Plan consultation, and said the
point will come when the council has to make some tough choices — we cannot keep
putting the burden of supporting what we want to do on developers.

The Cabinet Member for Customer and Regulatory Services understood these
concerns, and was surprised that the charges would extend to small developers,
potentially incentivising them to build fewer, larger dwellings rather than much-
needed affordable housing. He said he would ask planning officers to look into a
Cheltenham-specific action plan, possibly with a charge per bedroom rather than per
dwelling — we do not want a positive environmental impact to result in a negative
social impact.

RESOLVED THAT:

1. the Cotswold Beechwoods SAC Recreation Mitigation Strategy is
adopted

2. Cabinet is committed to bringing forward a detailed action plan for
Cheltenham borough that will look to utilise existing parks,
gardens, public open spaces, accessible private green spaces and
designated Local Green Spaces, including raising awareness of
less well known spaces as well as considering new areas in each of



Page 12

these categories that may have the potential for enhanced public
access and wherever possible deliver benefits for those
communities most impacted by development and those with least
access to nature in their neighbourhoods

11 UBICO Business Plan, 2024-25

The Leader introduced the report, saying Cheltenham is lucky in what Ubico delivers
across the county, and also in its exciting plans for future growth and more recycling.
It is the council’s biggest contract, costing £10m a year, but does a fantastic job.

The Cabinet Member for Customer and Regulatory Services complimented Ubico for
its outstanding record in pushing recycling to record levels and increasingly
sophisticated approach to big issues, at the same time as quickly tackling localised
problems — a testament to good management.

The Cabinet Member for Communities and Safety also thanked and complimented
Ubico for their excellent work. She said they recently helped a number of disabled
residents in her ward who were having trouble sorting their recycling, and praised
their recycling of food waste to buy food for food banks.

The Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets commented on how much
environmental services have changed over the years, and praised Ubico for their
excellent work and level of service. He thanked management, but gave special
thanks to the frontline operatives who are out working day in day out, whatever the
weather.

The Cabinet Member for Waste, Recycling and Street Services commented on the
goodwill and can-do attitude of Ubico operatives, particularly in the face of recent
challenges of extreme weather conditions and race week — they have shown
themselves to be an innovative, well-led and reactive workforce. With their excellent
management and exemplary service, it is no surprise that they go from strength to
strength and are expanding geographically, and he thanked them from the bottom of
his heart.

RESOLVED THAT:

1. the Ubico 2024/2025 Business Plan is noted;

2. the Leader of the Council, as shareholder representative, will sign the
written resolution to approve the Ubico 2024/2025 Business Plan in due
course.



Page 13

12 Briefing from Cabinet Members

The Leader invited Cabinet Members to present any briefings.

The Cabinet Member for Waste, Recycling and Street Services said work on the
refurbishment of Montpellier Toilets had begun today, after two years of planning.
This public service is discretionary, and the Changing Places facility will remove
barriers and enhance the ability of residents and visitors to participate in what
Cheltenham has to offer.

The Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency was excited to report that the council is
giving money to a number of businesses and organisations to retro-fit their properties
to make them more environmentally friendly. There are many bold ideas from a wide
range of businesses, and lessons learnt will be shared with others in due course.

The Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets reported that the 2021-22 accounts
have finally been signed off — an important milestone in view of the national backlog.

The Leader reported an exciting visit to the MX, where she welcomed the press to
showcase the project so far. She also met tenants, who can’t wait to move in, and
looked forward to the wider launch in the summer.

As it was the last meeting of Cabinet before the election, she thanked each and
every Member for their contributions, saying she was proud of everything the
LibDem administration was doing and delivering. She thanked officers, especially
the Chief Executive for his support over the last two years, and all staff at CBC. She
also thanked the Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Culture, Tourism and
Wellbeing, who is standing down as a councillor, for his fantastic work — he will be
much missed, and she wished him well for the future.

13 Cabinet Member decisions since the last meeting

The Leader invited Members to report on decisions taken since the last meeting of
Cabinet.

The Cabinet Member for Waste, Recycling and Street Services reported
two decisions for the purchase of recycling and refuse vehicles,
previously agreed as part of the general update and refurbishment of the
fleet. He confirmed that contracts were awarded assiduously and
carefully to ensure the best value for money.

Award of contract for refuse collection vehicles

To award a contract to Romaquip for two kerbside recycling vehicles

He also reported the following appointment, as previously mentioned in his briefing:
Appointment of Contractor for Montpellier Gardens Toilet Refurbishment

As previously mentioned, the Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency
reported on the decision to award grants, following a very robust


https://democracy.cheltenham.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=3107
https://democracy.cheltenham.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=3116
https://democracy.cheltenham.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=3114

Page 14

process. She said there were many more applications than could be
funded and making the decisions was tough, but she was happy with the
outcomes.

Cheltenham Zero Business Fund — Award of Grants

The Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets reported the following
decision, to retrofit social housing
To appoint Sero Life Ltd to deliver professional retrofit services

The Leader said that the Deputy Chief Executive Director had come to
the end of his tenure as Non-Executive Director of Ubico Ltd, and would
be replaced in that role by the Corporate Director and Monitoring Officer.
She said he had been well-respected and valued and was confident that
the new appointee would be equally so.

To appoint Corporate Director and Monitoring Officer as Non-Executive
Director of Ubico Ltd



https://democracy.cheltenham.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=3113
https://democracy.cheltenham.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=3125
https://democracy.cheltenham.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=3111
https://democracy.cheltenham.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=3111

Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024 Ag e n d a I te m 5
Page 15

Cheltenham Borough Council
Cabinet — 28 May 2024

Updated Climate Emergency Action Plan

Accountable member:

ClIr Alisha Lewis, Cabinet Member
Accountable officer:

Maizy McCann

Ward(s) affected:

All

Key/Significant Decision:
No
Executive summary:
Cheltenham Borough Council declared a climate emergency in July 2019, the development of
the Climate Emergency Action Plan: Pathway to Net Zero followed this and was approved by
Council February 2022. The Action Plan details areas of focus and projects to deliver on, this
has been under review and updated.
Working with the service teams across the Council, the document attached provides:

a) A review of progress against the actions listed in the original plan and

b) an updated plan looking forwards in order to expedite delivery of the 2030 targets.

Recommendations: That Cabinet:

- approve and publish the updated Climate Emergency Action Plan.

1. Implications

Page 1 of 8



Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024

Page 16

1.1. Financial, Property and Asset implications

A costed plan with deliverables and milestones to address internal emissions is essential to
drive delivery of the Climate Emergency Action Plan. Plans are being developed for each of the
Council’s key buildings as an essential first step during 2024.

CBH has separately drawn up a costed plan to retrofit existing social housing by 2030. As this
exceeds the budget by four times, emission reduction will be brought forward as funding
becomes available.

Signed off by: Gemma Bell, Director of Finance and Assets (Deputy Section 151 Officer)
gemma.bell@cheltenham.gov.uk

Legal implications

The overarching legislative context of the Council’s Climate Emergency Action Plan: Pathway to
Net Zero is the Climate Change Act 2008. This Act places a legal duty on central government to
set legally binding targets to reduce UK greenhouse gas emissions to net-zero by 2050.

Where specific projects or actions are required going forward to support the Climate Emergency
Action Plan and ‘Cheltenham’s Green Deal’ (the Climate Change Investment Strategy) further
legal advice and support should be sought.

The Council must ensure that any decisions taken must be in accordance with the Council’s
Constitution and Financial Rules, particularly in regard to decision making, implementation of
strategy/action plans and any funding requirements.

Signed off by: One Legal, legalservices@onelegal.org.uk

1.2. Environmental and climate change implications

The updated climate action plan is designed to deliver against the Council’s net zero
commitments.

Signed off by: [Maizy McCann, Climate Emergency Officer,
maizy.mccann@-cheltenham.gov.uk ]

Corporate Plan Priorities
This report contributes to the following Corporate Plan priorities:

= Working with residents, communities and businesses to help make Cheltenham net zero
by 2030.

» Ensuring residents, communities and businesses benefit from Cheltenham’s future
growth and prosperity.

1.3. Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Implications

The updated Climate Action Plan works in tandem with wider equality, diversity and inclusion

Page 2 of 8


mailto:gemma.bell@cheltenham.gov.uk
mailto:legalservices@onelegal.org.uk
mailto:maizy.mccann@cheltenham.gov.uk

Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024

Page 17

objectives. The plan is supported by the Climate Impact Assessment Tool which takes into
account wider social value considerations to support a holistic and coherent approach to
decision making, beyond simply considering climate ramifications.

Signed off by: Head of communities, wellbeing & partnerships,
richard.gibson@cheltenham.gov.uk

1.4. Performance management — monitoring and review

The submitted plan has clear accountabilities across the Council areas for delivering against the
specific targets. Climate Programme Board will oversee the plan and ensure key personnel are
involved to deliver against identified goals and that a funding plan is put in place to deliver
against our targets.

2. Background

2.1. Cheltenham Borough Council has set an ambitious 2030 net zero target and has made a
good start in terms of addressing emission reduction.

2.2. The plan has been reviewed and updated to:
e focus effort on reducing key emissions internally and

e to give us a clear focus to address emissions boroughwide in the three key areas:
domestic heat emissions, business and industrial emissions and transport emissions.

2.3. Looking forwards, a costed plan to reduce our Scope 1 and 2 emissions to almost nothing
must be developed and there is a requirement to explore the viability of compensating for
the remaining emissions through mechanisms such as carbon-offsetting. Although we will
address our Scope 3 emissions head on to reduce them, as far as possible, this may
prove to be a longer process.

2.4. The plan includes delivery dates and has been devised with key accountabilities across
the service areas of the Council to enable progress to be more accurately evaluated.

3. Reasons for recommendations
3.1. Progress will become more difficult to deliver over time without a costed plan.

3.2. Greater prioritisation around key areas of emissions will enable greater progress to be
made, given the significant scale of the challenge.

4. Alternative options considered

4.1. nl/a

Page 3 of 8


mailto:richard.gibson@cheltenham.gov.uk

Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024

Page 18

5. Consultation and feedback
5.1. The updated action plan was drafted with the various service areas across the Council.
6. Keyrisks

6.1. See appendix 1.

Report author:
Maizy McCann
Appendices:

I Risk Assessment
il. Updated Climate Emergency Action Plan

Background information:

N/A

Page 4 of 8



Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024

Appendix 1: Risk Assessment

Cheltenham Borough Council - Corporate Risk Register - Climate Target Risk

Identify budget and funding for these works

Plan in place for less critical assets

Risk Details Risk Current Control Details Risk Review Date
Manager Assessment Action
(unmoderated)
Scope 1,2 & 3 Emissions
Scope 1 & 2: CBH integration - carbon | Frances Crick | Impact -4 There is a need to balance need for social housing | Reduce | Q4 2024
footprint for CBH will be integrated volume & quality. Plan in place suggests funding
with CBC. would need to increase fourfold to achieve net ;_,U
zero target. L(%
Probability - 5 Consider funding sources -
O
Score - 20 Ensure new housing stock is highly efficient.
Scope 1 & 2: Property Portfolio (key Gemma Bell | Impact-4 Clear 10-15 year asset investment strategy in Reduce | Quarterly progress
buildings including the Pool, Pittville tandem with the Sports Strategy. Q2 2024
Pump Room, Municipal Offices,
Stadium etc). Probability - 4 Costed Proactive Maintenance Plan (incl. energy
measures & paybacks) for each key asset
Score - 16 Cabinet engagement - budget proposals




Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024

make it easier to retrofit historic properties.

Scope 1 & 2: Ubico emissions Karen Impact -3 Clear 10-15 year asset investment strategy Reduce | Formulate plan to
reduction plan incl. depot Watson required. address during
2024
Probability - 4 Costed Proactive Maintenance Plan (incl. energy 0
measures & paybacks) for depot
Score 12 Long term vehicle replacement strategy (beyond
HVO) possibly hydrogen.
Ubico-wide Long Term waste strategy
Scope 3 Supply Chain Targets Claire Impact -3 Segmented strategic approach to emission Reduce | 30/09/2024
Hughes reduction
Probability - 4 Development of internal procurement function
with consideration of emission approach.
Score - 12 Effective Offsets Strategy Put in Place U
Q
Consideration of CBH scope 3 emission approach. L%
N
Organisational Resourcing in placeto | Ann Impact - 4 Recruitment of Climate Change Manager & Reduce | 22/01/2024 o
deliver plan Wolstencroft Provision of Director Level Support
Probability - 3 Effective Integration of CBH
Score - 12 Administrative Support & retention of existing
resources
External Borough Wide Emissions
Domestic heat emissions account for Climate Impact -3 Formulate a clear retrofit strategy that fits Reduce | 18/12/2024
42% of borough wide emissions and Change alongside boroughwide approach
are d'ff'CUIt.to addr-es.s given the high | Director Probability - 5 Consider proactive development consent order to
volume of listed buildings across (TBC)




Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024

Cheltenham and building net zero new Score - 15 Develop a local supply chain to deliver retrofit
222;3i;;:;(p::ir:gs(;vséyic:;n;!;zrr]z Inot Consider funding/financing options
targets to deliver highly efficient new
homes.
Business and industrial emissions Climate Impact -3 Work with Key Emitters to address emission Reduce | 30/06/2024
account for 32% of borough wide Change reduction barriers
emissions. Although Cheltenham Zero | Director Provide support for smaller emitters and
has made a start to estabilish broad (TBC) community groups to take tangible action around
engagement, a segmented approach is emissions
needed to address emitters large and Probability - 4 Consider wider sustainability targets
small to support emission reduction
across the borough. ] o ] ;_,U
Score - 12 Rescope service provision and consider «Q
reputational impacts during transition @
— - - - - N
Golden Valley Development - If the Paul Minnis | Impact -3 Sessions with Councillors to build awareness Reduce | 30/09/2023 =
development does not achieve the around what can be achieved and issues inherent
anticipated emission reduction then in delivering full net zero development.
the planning permission maybe Probability - 4
refused by Councillors or there is
reputational risk given the ambitions Score - 12
outlined in the SPD.
Climate Adaptation Risks
Identify and evaluate adaptation risks | Climate Too early to say Identify strategic adaptation risks to inform the Reduce | 30/09/2024
internally and borough wide, to Change SLP.
ensure that these are taken into Director Complete Climate Change Committee/Local
account in day to day decision making | (TBC) Partnerships Framework to identify key risks

using the Climate Change Committee
Framework

enable Service Manager's to plan more
effectively.




Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024

2¢ obed



smrcswequEy Q@ QE) >@> moied

Page 23

ybnoiog pue [IDUunodD
0J3Z 19U B 2UJ023Qg 01 YJoMmaulel]) uoildoe g0z 1IN0

0197 19N 01 Aemuyied
uejd uondy Adusbiawg ajewll|d

S/AIDONNOD HONOWO8 WVYHNALT3IHO

TN HOOW0E

WVHNALTIHD

0 %4 0T



Page 24

N .
SUOISSILUT € @ 7 ‘| ©do2og Bbuionpay

SNOILV33dO NMO dNO

SSOUIV AVM 3HL DNIAVIT



€ |pyuassd si1 supd [pHdDO pun ddoUbDUSBUIDW 3dAODOId O} paubib ‘puocAaq pub
0£0Z 0} ub|d pajsod b OS ‘Swll} JIDA0 IDAIISP O} I9pPIDY SBWO0I3(C UOIINPSI UOoISSIWIT

()
%01 %01

umoq Aq pasnpay pabupyd SN

asn
(‘Ajojoindas pajunod 12ny/s0B SOIYIA JaY}0 senJadoud Jayzo
Ajuannd a1p HED) “ApdupRde 3 SOHS JSNIL WDYUSHIYD R S91S 1SNiL wbyuandyd
jo uolnqysip '3 :o_&_EmME_ ‘abpsn ‘021qq 12UN0d ‘oa1qn ‘|12uno)

19JDM ‘[2ADY} ssauUIsNg /Buynuwiwod ay} ul 6DsN SO
‘spoob paspysind woluy suoissiwg 10} 3sn A31911309]3 paialdiN

s|an} [IssO}
Buiuinq
wouly
SUOISSIWID
§23lid

K

0
T
(Clrerers)

< < apIxo|p
(HgD UOQID JO SBUUO} O}

Page 25

2

O
©

& d

19X3) T'9566 €'00¥L e
suolssiwg SUOISSILIg SUOoISSILUg SUOISSILUY JusIpAInba - QD sp
|pjoL ¢ 2doog | ©doog 7 9doog painspay suoissiuwig

‘[|IPJA0 PISDBIOUI SADY JUNOD M SUOISSIWD
aY3] OS ‘apn|oul 0] SP3JD M3U PUl} OM ‘UOISIDaId JNO BSP3IDUI BM SD ‘JDASMOH °186401 OEQZ 404 o041 UO UIpWal
Aj3ua1ind am ‘auljaspq pPaysi|qoisa JNo 1SUIDBD 1Pyl S91PJISUOWSP ‘Uaquuadaq ul paysiigqnd 1odal 1sp| JNO

NVid NOILONAZY NOISSINW3 NOGJAVYD



14
‘ybnouog

3Y3 SSOJOD P|SY SIUSAS PUD S|DAIISS} JO A}[IqOUIDISNS pPaAoIdull JOAIISP

01 padojanap Bulaq si AB31011S SIUSAT WDYUd|BYD 3y poayy bunjoo
'%/.°86 AQ padnpal aiom

JUDAS Muly 93] 9yl YHM PaIpId0SSD SUOISSIWS 920D 2yl ‘AlljIgpuipisns
UO SN204 pup ds13liolud 03 JUBWISSaSSD 1opdWl UMO Jno Bulsn

S91PN1S 9SDD 92119D.4d 1599

‘paijnuapl 2o sdpb

USYM SJSqWIDW PO1IJ]D PUD SIS0 01 PIPIACID DJD SSINPOWI/SUOIFUDAIDIUI
Buluipiy Pa1abip] puUDL UOIIdONPUI 3O PapN[dUl S| 8Bubyd a1PWI|D

10y1 pasodoud si 11 ‘Quawdolarag g Buluipa Yiim Buop (ppbayy bunjooq

"S19214JO JO UOI}08S SSOJD D 03 SUOISSaS Bululpiy Jo sbupb.

D paJaAl|ap aADY Juswdolanaq B BuluIpaT PUD JUSAS Bululpi} SISPDST
JOIUSS D PaPUSIID SJ1030311IJ DFD "S2UDPUSIID POOB Y3IM SIO||IDUNOD
Bulpn|oul gD SS0J2D PadNPOoJIUl SOM Bululpbil A2DJa117 UOGJIDD ‘Z2Z0T Ul
Bujuipa |

O
(Q\|
() 4202 Bulinp dais 1sJ1 [PIIUSSSD
w_o sob sBulp|ing A8y s,[12UN0D ay3 4o Yona Jo} padojaaap Buiaqg aip sup|d
Ol -AiaAl|9p SALIP O] [DIIUSSSS S| SUOISSIWS |DUIBIUI SSBIPPD 0 SBUOISS|IW
pup sa|qpJaAIap Yiim upjd pailsod y ‘awill JaAo Buibua|joyd AjBuispbaioul

awo029q ||IM A10128(DJ] JUs4INd By} BuluIDIUIDA :poaYY Bunjoo]

*duI|9spq PaaJbp UD JSUIPBD SUOISSIWS

€ 3 Z‘T 9doos 4o} 5196401 |PUISIUI JNO SPIOMO] ssaiboid panuiluod

D $910J1SUOWSP 140dal £2/220T Y} ‘JOASMOH °JUNOD M 10y} SUOISSIWD
By} 9spaJdul 03 papual soy ydiym anosdwi 01 anuizuod Aopindop g adods
Apbmyipd uononpay uoissiwig 7 yulidioo4 uoqipd

JINVE

ey

(1Pu191x3) *AB310JIS SIUSAS A|puUdll) UOQUIDD PUD
3|qpuUIPISNS aJow b Jo 1usawdo|aAap ay) ybnouayz abuoys
SALIP 01 ,UMO] |PAIISS4 3Yl, SO uollisod Jno abpiana]

9¢0¢-1¢0c

(1puas1ul) “ue1199 op ‘AjjpSpP!

Jo ‘91p2ljdal ‘suollop JNO WO} uJps| siaylo djay o3 ‘saliols
$S922NS puUD SBUIUID| ‘SBAIIDI}IUI B1PDWI|D Bulluswa|dwi
ul ®dualladxs JNo aJpys 0] salpnis aspd dojaAag

(1ou1e1U]) "UOIILIYIIISD AoDUS1IT

uoQJpD D BulUIDB SIBqUIBW PBIIB|D PUD }JDIS ‘SIBDIO
S,[I2UN0D 3Y3 JO %00T 01 IWWOD puD Siduppd pup [1I2UNOD
ay1 03 ,buiuipi] Aopu19317 UoqUD), A1oS|Ndwod 8dNpPoIIU|

(1ouus1ul)

"9oUBJaIP O Bupjpw way3l 910311904 d|ay 01 Sa114o0yINo
|020] 03 14oddns J91paJ6 pup UOIIdD S1PWID J9Bu0IlS
JO} JUBWIUIBA0D JO S|aA3] Jaybiy BuiAqgo| 03 JIwwo)

(jouasauy)

“103A uO JpaA 100dwi JNO JO BI0W BPN|DUI PUD BWII] JBAO
9s1094d pup ybnouoyl ai0w g 03 JNOADIPUT "1INS MO||O} O}
SJ9Y31o 8bpnJinoous pup Ajjpnuup Julid1o0) uogJpd JNO Hoday

€¢0¢-0co¢

SN204 JO sbaly ainin4 73 alopdn A1aAlpq suonoy pasodoud

*Apm ay) Buo|p siappa| Jayio 0} Buiysodubis ‘Mo||0} O} SI9Y30 10} JDISDD
11 oW 01 921100.d 1S9Q 9JDYS PUD SIIAPD IS0 UDD dM ‘SpIDPUD]S Jaybiy JaAd 19s 01 Buiyaas Ag "saA|asino sabupyd asayi Bupw uo Bulppa|

2Q 01 U23S 9 1SNW 3M ‘SaAI| pUD SUOIIPSIUDBIO JIaYy} 01 SEBUDYD AIDSS3I9U BY3 9XDUW 03 SIBY10 XS 03 J9pJo Ul IbY3 saAdl|aq AjBuouis gD

MBIAIBNQ

ATdINVX3 A9 ODNIAVA1

paels Jou — pay
$$920.4d Ul — MO||DA

pauoIlde — ulaJo
A9y} anoj0) uony



_Oou-ucwc.\_mmmmmm-uumae_-mpmrc_lu
-|12uN02-Yy3Nn0J0g-weyualayd/salpnis-ased/Hn-Aod |eao| mmm//:sdny "1
'$955920.4d A1110YyIno |DIO] UIYIIM
A1111gpuip1ISNS paguua 031 pash 8q Upd (d0DIH) 9211004d
JO 9pP0D SIUSAT uddJH Byl MOY 1591 01 ‘Bulppay pupn
|01S14g “491SOYDUDIA SPISBUO|D ‘S|PDAIISS4 WDYUdldYD
Buipn|oul Sa11110YIND |PI0] US1 Y1iMm 10[id yiuow
-ZT D JO LP3Y 3Y] 1D S1IS I0Y1 YJowyduaq 921100.4d 1599
D BW029q SPY [9pow J1va 9yl “1oodwi AlljIgoulpisns
[DIUSWIUOIIAUS puD A1[IQISS922D ‘ALIUNWIWIOD S,JUSAD UD
SS9SSD 0} 1Y |00} 9|dwWiIS ‘9SN-031-934) D YHM S31311I0YIND / C x_.w
[P0 saplAcad 3] "£Z0Z Y2JDIA Ul paydunp| som (31va) \= jﬁ \\
S]USAJ JO4 OO JUSWISSASSY 1nuog ‘Siyl wouy padojanaq

‘PUD|ISqWINYIION O3 }9SJ9WO0S pub
yiog woud) S|I2Un0) JBYlo ZZ ISNJL |DUOIIDN YlIM PaIpys
usag sy Siyl 91pp oL ‘;S9ssad04d Juswdojansp 12s(oud

pup BuPW-UOISIBP JO 1P1S AJSA 3yl woJy saidljod
pup s309[oid Jo sjopduwil [DIDOS PUD |PIUSWUOIIAUD

3yl 210N|PAS AJISDS 01 SIS}PW-UOISIIBP pUb

SJ1921}J0 9|qpuUd 01 PaubISap SI |00} BY] ‘UOIIDD SIPWI|D
01 JUBWIWWOD S,]12UN0) 3yl Yiim paubijo aio saidijod
pup s1o9f[oid mau ainsus 031 $9sS8204d BuPPW-UOISIOBP
[PUJSIUI UIYLIM PISh 9q 03 JUdWIssassy 1ondw|

a1powWl|D b pakojdap pub padojaAsp wbyualdyd ZzZ0oZ Ul

_OO._. ucwgmmwm@q HO_OO_E_ wwOE__U




M
s LI
g B8

@

- ]

- e ]
C JC JC ||

*|003 9Y3 JO JuaWdo[2ASP JaYLIN WIOJUI PUD SSOUDAIIDDLS SSIWIXDW

031 pamainal Bulag SI JUaWSSassy 100dw| a1pwi|d 3yl :ppayy bunjoo]
‘UOIIDIDOSSY

JUBWIUIBA0Y |00 8Y3 AQ Apnis aspd 8213004d 1S3Q SO pasnh uaaq sby 1|
[I2UNOD 3Y3 Ul SUOISIDaP Jo[obw WJoUl 03 Pash A|aulInNoJ si |00 ] 93wl dYL

juawissassy 1opdwi| arowi|d

*SU3| SIY1 ybnouyl 1uswiISaAUl UoilpIduabal uMmo s |1ouno) bulioliuow
AlBuispaidul 810 S\ "UD|d |P20T 21691041S Syl UIyHM saidijod Bujuup|d oiaz
19N 9AI11094J9 JO Juswdo|anap 14oddns pup sSaUaAIIO844e dA0IdWI 0] ‘9310p
031 ddS 910WI|D 3Y3 4O SSDUDAIIDDL4D 9yl BuIMaIASI 210 S\ :ppaYY Bupjoo]

% *sJ3]10q spb upya JayipJ ‘seibojouydal 1Y UOQIPD

@ O] Buisn }jIng 39 [|IM S8SNOY GIZ |PUOIIPPD UL ‘QdS 3y} JO 9sn0dag

sy %._ A]dD3 paJaAldp SbY pup Zz0oz Ul paluswsjdwil som gds a1owlD ayl
o ads apwi|o
‘K1anlsp 1oddns

01 SWpa} AJSAIIDP 9IAISS SSOJOD 39S 3q ||IM SDAI309[q0 a30WI|d d14109dS
‘pamalnal Bulag Aj3uslind s| s196401 UOIIONPSJ UOISSIWS 3Y3 1SUIDBD J9AII9P
01 paJinbau as114adxa pup 24n1onJ1s uollpsIULBIO 8y :poaYyy 6unjoo]

*120Z @2uls 220|d Ul Ja21}}0
P3| D Y1IM ‘0Z0Z 22Uuls 2o0|d Ul USSQ SDY [9A3] 18UIGDD 1D JO[|12UN0D)
AjIqpIUNO22Y %3 diysiapoa

(1oui=u]) Juswdolansp

94n310NnJ1spJjul pup JusWSINd04d Sb yons spaJp a1p10diod Buipnjoul
‘s|pob Awouods usalb pub B1NIDU ‘©1PWI|D JNO YIIM 9dUDpPINb

pup saloljod ‘supjd A101N103S-UOU pub AJO1NIPDIS [IDUNOD JNO UBIY

(jpuia1ul) “asiuadxs pup

AK11o0doo A10SS829U BY3] 1INJ23J 0] PSPISU JUSWISSAUI PUD SUOISIDBP
ay1 asnoud Ajiims puo Aomyiod siyi ul 10 13S SUOIIOD Y3 JSAIISP
01 P3P33U 9210JHI0M |DUOIIIPPD PuUb BuIlSIXa 3yl Malral Ajjpnuuy

9¢0¢-12oc

(jouus1ul) "[12UNOD 8y}

JO spaau ayj Builaaw |[13S 31S|Iym JusawuoliAua 8yl uo 1ppdwi 9|qissod
1S9MO| 8y} 10Y3 S9AI11PIIUI dOj9ASpP 0} pash a9 P|Noys |00} SIYL
‘UoISI29p JO dAIIPI3IUL ‘109[oud yopa Jo sabpis AjJpa ay3 10 paJapISuod
A1@1onbapp aip suoilpaijdwi 81pWI|D I0Y] 8INSUS 0} |00} D dINPOIIU|

(Jou191x3) ‘spiopupls

SNDYAISSDJ 4O 9Sh Y3 pup }Jpowyduag ,2Jn1I0N Yum bulpjing,

ay31 Jo uonndopp BulAlp ‘suolinjos ABisus ajqouipisns Bui||pisul
‘uib 19N A11SISAIPOIG 9ASIYDD 03 Juswalinbal ay3 ‘sanbiluyosal
(IWAN) uswaboupy Pool4 |panipN Buisn dojaasp 01 A1sse2au
3yl apnjoul Abw Qds 3yl “Bujpw uoisidap Jisyl ui sisuup|d Ino
P10 PUD SJ9dO|SASP 10} ,PIDPUDIS WDYUSY[SYD, Mau D 13s 01 (AdS)
1uswnooq buluupid Aipiusws|ddng pPasnd0}-91DWI[D MBU D SNSS|

(jouusnuy)

'dVv3D 8y1 ul 1no 19s s196.403 ay3 Buileaw isuipbp ssaiboid uo jiodal
211qnd [pnuub up ysijgqnd o3 palinbal aio oym ‘suoidwipy) aipbwi|d
SD J9214JO POJ| D PUD |9AS] 1BUIGDD 3D JO[|IDUNOD D Ylog A}1IUsp]|

SN204 Jo sbaly aining g appdn A1aAll2q £202-0202

SuoIl}0y pasodoid

*9JN3ou 9403saJ pup 309304d pup A3ljonb J10 A0CIdwI ‘S196.40) UOQIDD 0J9Z }DU |PIO| PUD |[PUOIIDU }93W 03 d|ay SuoISIdBp
JNO [|D 3JNSUD ||IM M ‘SNY '8JN3 N 0437 19N O Paquud 0} |1} [[IM dM ‘sjudawpndap Jno JO Yoo YyBnoiyl USAOM ‘SISqUIBWI PUD SISD1440
Jno ||o Joj SN20y b Bulag 81PWID INOYIAA *|12UNOD Y3 SSOJIOD poaIyY} Adljod Buouls b 8q 0] PpuUSBD 33DWIID BY3} JOJ PSBU D S| BI3Y} MOUX S\

M3INISAQ

SIIDILVAULS B SNV1d ‘SIIDITOd ‘ONIMNVIW NOISID3A



‘(Jeusa1x3) -modsueay a1gnd pue sAem 3]2A2 pa1eda.a3as se yons YJom 0}
[9AeJ} 0] 1JOodSueJ) JO SWJ0) DAIFID]|0I pue dAINde 3sh 03 3|doad moje 1eyl
sainseaw Ajiejnoiued ‘Jodsued) sjqeuielsns 98eanodud pue djgeus 0}
swisiueyaaw yans asn o1 [12uno) Ajuno) ay3 a8esnodua Jayun4 ‘sAsuinof
J910ys 4oy Ajaejnoined ‘9sn aed 3siAlzulduIsIp djay o1 swsiueydsaw

93pnu 21WOU023 3InpoJlul 03 sa1unoddo asojdxa ‘Aylaoyine

1odsueuy pea| ay1 s [1ouno) AJuno) ay3 1eyl uidpajmoud|de 3|1y

(jeusa3ix3) -syoafoad uoilea0lsal ainjeu pue suoljoe
91ewl|d puny djay 031 s4ay3o pue (710) Ara7 aunionaisesyul Ajunwiwo)
9y ‘sjuswaaade gQT uoI1129S Se yans ‘swsiueydsw Suruueld pue [e33] asn

(jeuss1x3) ‘Ausianipoiq Jo sso| 9y3 Jo uoluanaud pue Aduaidiyd

A313us padsueyus ‘uoiinjjod pue SuoISSIWD uogJed padnpas ajowoid
1843 S31HAII0E 21lou 023 ul 3ullsanul Aq ‘Awouodd uaaugd ayy mou3 Ajpided
01 2J1YS1931592N0|5 Ul Suolles|uedio pue s31340Yine J9Yo YUM YJOM

0€0¢C-L20¢

Page 29

(Jeusa1x3) *sjoou usa43 pue sw.ey Je|os

01 ‘suapJesd ujes pue (SGns) swalsAs adeuleaq ueqan a|qeuleisns |jews
wouy adues Aew siy] -3|qi1ssod JaA3I3YM S11JaUa(q |BIUBWUOIIAUS 3|dI} W
deau jey3 21n30NJ1SLIHUI JUDI|ISDI-DIRWI|D PUB UOGIRI-MO| Ul 1S9AUI 0} Y00

(jeusaiui) "anjeA |eID0S ppe Yd1ym 9soyl pue sassauisng |e20| d|geuleisns
wou} Suiseydund o1 1y3iom 491e343 ppe pue s1oedwi paje|as-aewl|d
J9pisuod Ajadoud saseydund |je aansud 01 Ad1j0d JUSWAINI0Id JNO MIINDY

(Jeusaix3) ‘uononuisuod pue siedau Jo seaue
2.nupuadxa 1s9y31y ay1 uo 1s414 Suisndoy ‘Suiliodau SUoISSIWD
€ 9d02S 1no JO |1e19p JO |[9A3] 9Y3 Aosdwi d|9y 03 ‘SUOISSIWD ¢

pue T 9d02S 419y} uo odaa pue ainsedw 03 sua1jddns a8einodu3y

9¢0¢-vc0c

(jeusaiuy) "sjany |1SSO4 JO UOIDLIIXD 1O Suluang

9Y3 Hoddns yaiym spuny woJf JUSWISIAIP JO JUSWHWWOI INO

JO ped se ‘o1j0j140d JUBWISAAUL 1SBPOW JNO MIIASJ 0} Ajunlioddo
1S91]4e9 9Y3 1€ ) 00| [|IM dM ‘d1lwapued syl wod 1oedwi

9Y3 WOJj SIS0 |12UN0) Y3 SY S9AI193[qo Aduadiowa arew|d
JNO JUNOJJk 01Ul 3B} SUOISIIFP JUSWISIAUL 34NIN4 ||B SJNnSu]

(jeusaix3) -sawayods Jejiwis jo dn ey

9y} 93eianodua 03 siejdwaxa a2130e.d 159q se pasn aq ued ydiym
‘s109foud pue saAleIul 93ewld AJunwWOod ‘9]eds J3jjews adueuly
01 sd|ay 1ey3 ,pund Aunwwo) alewi|), [enuue ue dNPOoJIu|

(jeusaix3 i jeusarul)'(S4LIN) ASa1ea1s

|[elduUBUI4 WIS WNIPIIA S, [12un0) 3yl Hoddns 01 pue a8ueyd
9}ewl||d 0} 9DU3|ISD DSEIIOUI PUB SUOIFINPIJ UOISSIWD UogJed

dn paads 01 (S|IAD) sauawisaau| jeddiun|p AHunwwo) 10 ‘spuoq
‘syueud se Yyons sueaw snoliea 3uisn ‘s3oafoad uaausd ul JUSWISIAUI
10} pasies 9q 03 Asuow sa|geus pue sanosdde jeys |eaq uasio

S, weyuayay), se umouy A3a1eu1s JusWISaAU| a1ewl|) e dojpAag

€¢0¢-0¢0¢

suoloy pasodoud

'SUOISSIWD IPIM y3noaoq 3uidnpad apisduole ‘suoissiwa ureyd Ajlddns € 9doas umo ano 3uidnpad ul yloq ‘Uyausq Juediiudis
e 9Aey ued y3noJaoq ay3 ssoude suoisiaap suiseyaund unQ "0EQ 4104 S1934e1 U0 Sulydead JO SS92INS Y3 01 [eIdNJD S| JUdWISIAUL dleAld pue d1gnd yjog

MBINIBAQ

LNIWITANDOOUd 3 ONIANNL ‘IONVNIL



*S|pOB UOISSIWD d3PIM YybBnoiogq umo Jno

JaAI|9p 031 sup|d 8say3 Uuo p|INg ||IM dM ‘4Z0Z Buling °a11ysiaisaosno|o
SS0J2D S|I2UN0D 3Y1 JO |0 dpIsbuojp padojansp usaq aAbY

10y3 sup|d pup sdnoubxliom ayi Buirioddns si gD :ppoaypo bunjooq

*S101DUIPJI00D aBupyD 31PWID dPIM-AIUNOD 3Y3

Jo uoisinoud poddns 031 gD AQ appouw USSQ SPY UOIINQIIIUOD [DIDUDULY
Buiobuo up ‘patanl|ap a9 01 HJoMm Jo dwwpiboid palpys b s|gpus

0] "s396403 uoI13doNPaJ UOQJIDD PAIDYS Ydpal 03 sh Buijgous 03 A9y aq
[[IM 311YySJI91S90N0|9 SSOJOD SIDLIISIP MO|[94 JNO YHM A|9SO|D BuIyIopn

$10}DU|PJO-02 33PWI|D [12UNO0) AWNOD 341YsIa3sadN0[D YUM Bupjiopn

‘paiuswa|dwi
Bulaq 2ip saINspaW JUBWSHBOUDW POO|4 B|gPUIDISNS 9SBY} 1Y)
21nsus 0} suolipd|jddo Buiuup|d 103 1UOW ||IM SN pD3YD BuIXjoOoT]

"an|oA A1ISJaAIpoIg pupb Alluswp aAbY Aay) ‘Quswabouow
3S14 pooyy Buipiroad apisBuoly ‘[|pjuip 3dUp|Pg 0} ‘sup|d J18y}
Jo upd sp asay) apnjoul 01 siadojeAsp salinbal gds a1pwiD InQ

Page 30

SUapJIDH UIDY Pub (SANS) swalsAs abbulbig a|qpUILISNS

*AB3a1pJ1s Jno wiioul 01 yobouddo

JNO wWJojul 03 aJn}puadxa JNO Y3IM PaIDID0SSD SUOISSIUWIS dY3

@onpal 01 saljluniioddo Ajlluspl 01 S82IAISS PUD SPOOB ‘2iN3oNJIspIUI
Jo su9ijddns A8 JnO Y1IM 3JOM 0] %93S pub ainjipuadxa

JO spaip QT dol Jno 3SA|PUD [|IM M $20Z Buling :ppayb bunjooq

‘2in1n} ay3 Joj ABa1pJls uswalinodoud pssodoud
D WJOJUl pub suolssiwa ¢ 8dods ssaippp 03 aJn}puadxa Jno asA|pup
031 JUSWaINJ01d PUD 3dUDUIH Ul SBNBDS||0D YHIM PaXyIOM SADY S\

suoissjw3 € 2doos 73 JuswWaInd0.d

‘Ul duinogAsuoH ay3 uo
Asuoy awos apnjoul 01 103foud b pup |[pPYusg ul 103[oid Alijpnb 41D UD

LLI0SRY

ANVE

L
G |

Oooo
Oooano

LA IV

‘9I11A111d Ul Bunnup|d mau Buipn|dul ‘piooq 71D AllUNWWOd 9y}
ybnouy3s s1oafoid paip|as a1p0wWi|o 404 papliaoid usaqg soy Buipund

s199foud (11D) AAa7 aanjonaispagul Ajlunwiwiod

*s309[oud uollpsiuogipIap AllUunWWo) uoddns 01 3|gD|IDAD
Spuny a3bw 03 SNUIIUOD ||IM M 120z Buling :poayy bunjooq

‘SI0DA
[pIDUDULY Z JBAO YBnoaoq ayi SSOJO0D uoilpnsiuogipnosp joddns
01 3|gDP|IBAD 000‘00TF dpPLPW SbY pund A}unuwiwo) alxpwl|D 3yl

pun4 AJlUunwwio) Aapwld

‘uo13onpal
UOISSIWS JSAI[DP 01 [pa@ U349 8yl asn Ay ||IM 9Say3 pup
202 TO Bulinp dais 31sJ414 |P1IIUSSSS UD SO sBuip|ing Asy S,|1oUN0)
aY3 Jo Yooa Joy padojanap Buiaq aip sup|d :ppayy buijoo]

‘ybnoioq ussib puo upad B Joj dAId3[qo

JapIm ay3 buipyoddns uj [00] DA D SpIA0id pub paljI3uspl

340 10Y3] Sa13lunlioddo uoI11DSIVOQIDI3P Y] PIOMIOS YD)

01 pa2n|d [|]9M SI |IDUNOD BY3 SBINSUD |PBQ US3JH 3y "UoI1dNpal
UOISSIWD SALIP 0} JUSWIISIAUI Y0LTF JoAII9P 01 ABa1pJ1S 8yl pasn
9ADY SJ3D1JJO "DIJS1ID JUBWIISSAUI UIDLISD 393w Aay) Buipiroud
s109loud paip|al a1pwWId WOTF 01 dn 1S8AUI 0] [1IDUNOD 3Y3 S3|PUD
[D2Q US3JH 3y "ZZ0T 4O JSWWINS 3yl Ul ‘|pag usaJ9 S, wpbyual|ayd
SD umouy ‘ABa1pJ1S 1UBWIISaAU| 8BupyD a1pwi|D Jno paysijgnd s

|pa@ uaain s, wpyualdyd

Sh204 JO sbaly aining4 3 appdn AisaAlleq

LNIWIANDOO0Ud 3 ONIANNL ‘IONVNIL



(1Pus21x3) "sjpob Aousbisws

910WI|2 Y3IM sa121jod paly UOIIDAISSUOD UBID 0} |p13US30d 10} X007
(1PUI91X3) "UoIDINSUl POOH BASIYDD O3

wiay1 860inodud pup sai1uadold |DIDISWWIOD PUD J03D3S Pajual 93pALd
3Y3 ul sswoy jo Aousidiyie Abisus sanoidwi 01 spiojpub] yiim sbobul

0€0c-Lcoc

(1puwiL1x3) *(ads) wswnooq buluup|d Aiojuswsjddns mau b Ul
sjuawaJinbau bulipjndils Aq ABJsus sjgomaual 03 HWWod 0] siadojaAsp
abpJInodUT "BWDS Y3} Op 0} SIUSPISaJ pup sassauisng oddng

(jpussiul) “sisunpd Asy Aq paipbiado ssoyl Bulpn|oul ‘S19SSD

PBUMO [IDUNOD SSOJOD A310143099 B|qPbMaBUSI %00 T BuUISh 0} HWWo)

(1PuUJ493%3) *10INQ1IIUOD 33U b 3q
10_“ [p13US10d BY1 PUD SUOIIDAOUUI PUD S3I60|OUYID} MdU ‘s82un0s ABJsua
™ SAIIDUISY|D JO AI[IQISD) Yl MIIADY "AB210J1S 910D UIOr pUD UD|d
@ PYUadYD 9Y3 SO Yyons ‘spuswndop Adljod Buluup|d a4ninj ayi ui SD3JD

wm_o_ct:m BuiAjizusapl Aq uolipisusb ABJsus S|gqOMBUI Ul 1SOAUI 0] X93S

o (Jeusaix3) 's1oUMO swoy wou4 spiq
Suipuny jo suonesijdde ayi Suijell|ioey pue ‘suolie||eisul Mau 10j suoliedijdde
SuiSeanodua AjpA1roe ‘si9y40M |ed0| 40 Sululea-s||1ys 40 uoisinoid

9y3 Suioddns apnpul Aew siyj - ,Aed 01 9|qe,, se paijisse|d aJe 1eyl

9so0y3 Aq saanseaw 1ua121449 AS19uUDd 10) puBWIP DAIFIBYD SI D43Y] BINSUD

01 19)Jew 11J04194 3Y3 duanjyul Suid|ay Aq 4o ‘uoiie|nsul yum spjoyasnoy
9|qeJau|nA 1o J00d-[an4 apinoad 03 saluedwod A3iaus Suilsoddns Aq
‘91dwexa 104 ‘sawoy Juaidiyd AS1aud ai10w 91e34d 03 S191dN2D0-19uMo d|aH

(IPuJa3lUl) *3]qISPSY S13YM SUOIIN|OS JUSIDI4D
-ABJsus ‘9|gpuIPISNS Y1IM sa13uadosd paumo-|1ounod 1140119y

9¢0¢-vcoc

(JpuI231X3) *suolssiwa apIm-ybnoioq aonpas djay
0} ‘}J0M13U 103y UOQJIDI-MO]| PaJDys D JO A11|IgDIA 3yl 240|dx3

(1ou191x3) ‘suolbaJ pub SIDIISIP J9YI0 UIYIIM JO ‘UMO}

33 SS0Jop palpdj|dal g uayl 03 Buixulyl siy3 oy} S| uolipiidsp
InQ "9|A1s841] UOQIPD MO| b sajowold 1Yl WDYU3BYD

1S3\ Ul BulAl] pa1piBalul Jo) uoisIA b sb ‘quawdojanaqg A3||DA
uap|oy ay1 Joy ,8po) ubisaq AlljigpuipIsNS, mau b dojanaq

(24n1n4 ur jpusalul) ‘A119A0d [9Ny JO S1J 1D 1SOW SSWOY
3y31 Uo 1sJ1} BuISno0} ‘Buisnoy [DID0S PSUMO-[IDUNOD 11J0J19Y

(1ouss1u]) "uoirdwinsuod J1ayl aanpaJ AD|IWIS

01 SjudpIsal pub sassauisng yoddng ‘sbulp|ing paumo
[12UN0D ul uolldwnsuod ABJsus sonpal 03 sswwpiboid sabupyd
JNOIADYSQ 92NPOJIU| “S|9NJ |ISSOJ JO BSN 3y} WOl ADMD daA0W
pup uonndwnsuod ABi1sus sonpaJ A|SAI100 01 PSPI3U SUOIFOD
1n0 19s 03 ABaipuis Aouaidiyye ABisus pup Buiypay b dojaasp
pup saljiadoid paumo DgD 4o abpsn ABIsus syl 3INSDIA|

€202-020¢
suol}oy pasodoid

‘'Syjuow Jajuim ayi Surinp Aenaied ‘syuapisad Jo 3uiaq|am pue yyeay

9y3 anoudwi Agasays pue Alanod [any 9pjoel 01 wie AN 201s Suisnoy Sullsixa pue mau yioq ol Ajdde o1 spasu siy| ‘Aiaus pajiodwi uo aduspuadap
ANo 3uIdNPaJ 1S|IYM ‘Ul J40M pue dAI| 01 9|qel0jw o d10wW pue una o} sadeayd wayl Supjew ‘1eay o3 AS1aua sso| auinbas Asyiy Sunsus ‘saiuadoud
J11s9wop-uou pue 3uisnoy Jo Adualdiye ASiaus syl Suinoidwi uo spew 3q 01 pasu Ajjeaiiselp syusdwanosdw| ‘A10JudAu| SBS 3SNOYUSJD YN Y3

01 3uip1022e ‘SUOoISSIW APIM Y3Nn0oJoq JO %Z PUe SUOISSIWD uogJed YN || O piiyl e 1sowje dn sayew Ajjuauund sadedsytom pue sswoy Joj Suijesay

MBINIDAQ

ADUINE B ONIAIING



0]
*A1an119p pup ABa1pJls ABisus palp |pPIO| Joddns

0} 4221340 ABJau3 UD JO JUBWINIDSI JBPISUOD O :poayp buijoo]

‘ABisus sjqomausl
01 HW W02 03 siadojanap 03 [pubis b sapiroid gdsS 93pwi|D YL

*$19SSD A3 S11 SS0JOD ABJaua 9|goMaual %00T SasbydJnd [1DUno) ay |

"Juswdo|aAap a]qpMaUaI 104 SUOIIDIO0| B]gD1INS A}IlUspl 01 UD|d
[0207 216910.31S dY1 Joj paonpoud usag SpY Sa1PN1S OM] JO 1SJl) dY |

:uonpJauayn ABiau3

‘A|ddo suonndwaxs

10 Uo11dO 0J9Z 19U SAIIDUIDL|D UD 910J41SUOWSP 01 3|qD 34D SIado|aAsp
SS9JUN }JOM]ISU D 0] UOIIDBUUOD aiinbal |Im 10Y] 10y ABJsu3l

piA 920]d ul Ind Bulaqg s1 uonp|siba “yzoz Bulinp Apnis A1j1qispay
MIOMISN I0SH PI|I0ISp b BuypIIBPUN S| |IDUNOD Y| :pLaYL bunjoo]

‘GZ0Z Ul uoilpluswa|dwi J0) NP ‘WoYyual|dyd
UIYHM sauoz Bujipay Joj SUOIIOD0| 3|qPINS AJI3Uspl 0} €2
nnﬁ_u 70 Bulinp 10]1d U0z S JO0MISU 1PBY SIUBWUISA0D Ul Jpd %001 D9D

] juawdo|anaq y4omiap 1eaH uogied) Mo

(@)
®© *S||1Xs ua3a1b Jo Juswdol|arsp
o 3y1 apIsBuo|p 11404184 SBWOY punolp ABS1DJ1S JISPIM S,[IDUNOD
ay1 Jo awdojanap poddns |j1m 108load siy] :ppayp 6upjoo]
‘sawioy JIay3 Jooid-aininy
01 10D 0] SBWOY QG SSOJOD suapIsal Buljqous pup buamodws
‘wpbyual|dyd ui 104134 pub Bulaps ABisus punoup poddns
puUD uoIIPWIOLUI JSAIISP 01 123foud 101d b Buluuo|d s1 DgD “UpaA syl
wIDYud}|dyD SSO040Y SOWOH 404 310119y Bunsoddng
‘padojanap s 109foud ayi so w33 uopISUSB3I
331 apIsBUO|D pamalAal 9 0] SNUILUOD [[IM S|POob Jusbulils
9s9y3 1suipbp 109[oud ay] Jo Juswdo|ansp syl :ppayp bupjoo
*Ay1j1gpUIDISNS
1O s|aAd] YBiy JaA19p 031 9o0]d ul Ind 0s|o SOM QdS A3||PA USp|oD syl

A3]|IPA usp|oD 104 3P0 ubisaq AljigpuIpISnS

moe

*9]qIS0a} A[JP21IWIOU0ID puUD A|[DD1UYID] dIaym ‘Oljoj1iod Juswdojanap
S11 SSOJOD 0137 18N 40 AJBAI[ap 3y SPJOMO] Buiiom si DgD

BuisnoH [pP120S p|ing MaN

*9|gD]IPAD S8W029q Bulpuny SO PaIDIS|SIID

aq [[IM 11J0J418. OS ‘Bulpuny 9|gD|IPAD 3yl sawl} 7 A|@1pwixosddo

1S02 [|IM S8SNOY 00S ‘v Yl SS0JIOD 11404134 0497 33N BuliaAlap Inq

dn umpip usag sby up|d UOIIDSIUOCIDIBP BUIINO UY :poaYyD BbuijooT]

‘SdHSV 9A19231 0] paljiluapl
sawoy ZT Jayuiny b Yylim sawoy G/ T JO Juswaroidull o1uqgoy ay3
SPJOMO) $Z/€Z20T U99M13Q SID3A g J9A0 Bulpuny Jupib Wz 23 JaAI[9p
[[IM T°Z 9ADAN "9WIBYDS PaJdl|ays Hun Gz b 1o Builbay ao0ds 1o} (dHSD)
sdwnd 1p0sy 924n0s punoJb JO uoI1b||PISUl YlIM Jaylab0o1 siuswanoidwil
214gD} PUD SBWOY € 01 SJusWaAoIdwl d1IgD) paJaAlap Bulpuny

T 9ADM Y0083 ‘€20z Bulng "0£0z Ag s196401 AouaID144d [PIUBWUISACD
[Pe32Xa PUD JBA|[SP O} JUBWISaAU] pauup|d jo swwpiboid pPalsod b

soy Appald|p HgD ‘Buluup|d wusl Buo| bulinbau ‘Guibus||pyd sI 1110419y

1Jo119Yy BuisnoH |pId0S

D90 SS0JOD S139SSD pup sBuip|ing A3 40} Uup|d UOIIONP3J UOISSIWS
21502 D J3Y19603 Builind aip am ‘pzoz Buling :ppayp bujooq]

*asn ABJaus 1uaid144d anoidwil 01 sainspsw
JO awuwpiboid Jspim D apiIsBuo|p sBUIp|INg A% UMO JNO SSOJOD YOETF
1uads aApby ap Ajjpulaiu] uoilonpay uoissiwig g ABayoays ABiauz

Sh204 JO sbaly aining 3 appdn AisaAlleq

ADUEAN3 B ONIAIING




*S9JIAJSS |DIIUSSSD 0} 9SO|2 Pa1PN1IS pup podsupJy d1jgnd A3ljonb
poob pup sa1nos bupjjom ‘bul|2Ad a4ps AQ 9|q1SS920D A|gpIISUOWISP
240 A3y1 supaw sjuswdo|aAspP MaU JO UBISSP PUD UOIIDIO|

9y1 10y1 Buiinbas Ag 402 D 8SN PUD UMO 0} Pa3U dY3 SONPaY

0€0¢C-8¢0¢

(1PUI91X3) *SI9||9ADIY SAI10D 10) 1oddns pub sad1AI9s Ajljdwpo

0} PUD S3|D1YSA pauMo-A|91pAlId 10} A11401ud SAOWSI 03 UOIIIqUID
S,|12UN02 9Y1 91DJISUOWSP 03 AIDSSSIBU ] ||IM (SBUWSBYDIS 3IDYS

402 104 4O suspJIpb upbgun Bulpaud Ag “9°1) seapds Bupjipd JOd SWOS
Buisodinday *ao10yd Adoijod siy3 309|434 01 pasu ||Im sabipyd Buiyiod
9J3U32 UMO] "BUIALIP UDY] 3|QPINOAD) SJO0W 3 0} Ud3S pUb 3|gDIA
91D 9sn JPD 03 SUOI1do |9ADI] BAIIDUISY|D BJNSUD 03 SADM a10|dXd

03 SNUIIUOD [|IM S\ “AB31DJ11S Budod D BUIISIXd JNO MIIASY

(1puJ91x3) "yamoub d1wouods pup sqol mau

942 1S|IyM ‘wpyual|ay)d 03 sa31q 0610 JUSID144S 4O UOIIONPOIIUI
o 93 930}1]1004 PUD }JOM3IBU POOJ |DJIUDD BY} WOI) SB|IIYDA

A m.a []9p 964p| 8A0W=a4 d|3Yy [[IM SIY]| "2J1USD UOIINGIIISIP SPIM-DBID
up dn BuIes Ag PBID BY] SSOIOD SBIIBAIIBP JaudaIb S8bDINOJUS 10y}
ABa1043S ,B]1W 1SD|,, O JUBWS|dw] pup dO|ASP 03 DID YHM IO

™
93
QO

(IPuIS1x3 7R |PUISIU]) "SIIBUSQ

Bujiod o2 10311p BulAowsl JO0 Buidnpal pub MIOAN 01 8|2AD,

SD YoNS SBWBYDS 9AI1USDUI }403S BUIdNPOJIUI ‘[P 19300DS-8 AJUNOD
3y3 Jo uol1lpnuiluod 3yl builioddns ‘sawsyos Bulipys-1pd Buijowoid
SD yons ybnoiog ayil 01 3|gP|IDAD S2INSPAW YBnoJyl asn Jnd 30Npay

(1Pusa1ul) "suolido Bupjiom-swoy pup 3|qIxa]} dAISSa1604d

Buipnjoul ‘AB310J3S [9ADJ] }JDIS USAIH pPalpIobIAUISI O YbBNoiyl SI9214J0
[1ounod AQ BuIINWIWIOD 40} PISN S3|21YSA 31PALId JO 3sn 3yl 9oNpPay
(1ouia3u]) 'ybnouog syl SSOIOD SSIIAISS [DIUSWUOIIAUS BulsAlDpP
S3]21YaA spoob AApay s,|1ouno) ay3 4o} Ajupjndinpd ‘uolldo s|gpiIA

D 194 10U S| UOI}DD1}141D9]8 BJ9YM SSDOUDISUI Ul |9S3IP [PUOIHPDJ] JO 92p|d
ul |an} (OAH) 110 9|qp1sbaA pa1pal0ipAH JO 8SN ay) SP YoaNs sainspaw
wilJd3ul 840|dX3 "S3|21YSA D14303|3 0} 393} UMO S,|I2UNOD 3Y3 UOIIISUDI |

Lc0¢-veoc

(IPu1L1x3) *84n3IdNJISDIUI PaJINbal
Jo uoisinoud ayj 14oddns pup ‘saAjons ABOjouYydS] SO UOQJIDD 0JZ JO
W0} J9YIoup 1O ‘O11399]8 9q 0] SIXD} ||P aJinbau [|1m 1pY) Ad1jod D JaAIeQ

(jpu191x3) *(dL1) up|d Modsupi] P07 JI9Y] JO AISAISP
3yl yum DD uoddns pup syipd J0d PAUMO |12UNO0D UIyIm sjulod
BuIbBipyd 3[21YaA 214303] Bulj|piIsul AQ S3|21YSA 2113098 01 HIYS b 3|qoul

(JouJ91X3) "OS Op 01 B4DS PUD 3|CDIINS S| 3 JOASIBYM ‘SHID.
3242 aJow Bul||PISUI SO [|]9M SD ‘@say) 91011190} d|ay 03 sassauisng
UM BUIMIOM ‘UMO] BY3 SSOIOD ,Sgny 3]2AD 84DS, MaU 80NPOJIU|

(jpuie1x3) ‘Bulisyjo odsupuy

2119nd s, wpyual|dayd Jo Aljigqpulpisns ayl sanoidwil pup adUpbyud

0} Wwa3sAs JodsupJil SSOW 84NNy D 10} S9IN0J PIPNBBJOS 0} %99S 'SP3ID
upgJn ul Hwi| paads ydwoz p Bulonpousiul pup supliisapad Joy 9opds
Buispaioul ‘sAoma|dAd paipbaibas Buljjpisul Jo Aruolid b Yyiim ‘Bujjom
pupb Bul|2A2 Ul JUBSWISOAUI JJodsupu} 3si3401Id 03 DD YHM HIOM

€¢0¢-0c0¢
SUoIdY meOO_O._n_

s1opdwi y3jpoay aAisod yim

Ayonb o s,wpyualdyd aAoiduwi 01 djay ||IM SIYl SO YoNs SaI0I[0d “UOI13d0 9AI300J110 2J0W D dW023( 01 SPaau HodsupnJy 21| gnd ‘921yaA b
INoy1Im sAauinol asayl axpw 01 3|gpun 3soyl J04 ‘8]9A21q AQ 10 1004 UO apbW 3q P|NOD SABUINO[ 8SaY] JO AUDW ‘WX Z JapuUN aip WoYual|ayd
UIY3IM sAauinol Jod JO %0/ PIIPWIISS UY S|21YaA PAUMO A|910AIId WOJS SUOISSILWS 3ONPaJt UDD 1J0dSUDI} SAIIOD 2J0W 0} HIYS [PpoW Y

MBINIDAQ

ALITVNO UIV B TIAVIL ‘LAOdSNVIL



1

‘Aiuoyiny odsuel|

pea) se 9]0l J1dy) Ul 909 Yyum A19s010 Supjiom ‘0£0e Aq ueid uonoy
S11 Ul pauUINo SUOOE. 8Y1 188W 01 8ALIIS 11IM DGD :peaye Sunjoo]
*20¢ go4 ul edjaq Aq perdesoe sem

ueid ay] ‘Ainenb iie 1820] 9A0IdwI 01 S8INSEBW JO 18S 9AISUBYaIdw oD
e 10 8unsIsuod dyQv e padojansp am iuswageuew Alnenb

lle 1800) Japun sanniqisuodsal ino Jo 1ed sy ‘uoiin)od JO 19A9) 8)es
ou Aidwis sl alay] 1810 sl yneay pue A&inenb die usamiaq dul ay|
(dvOV) up|d uondy AH|PNY A1y

‘|9ADJ] SAIOD pUD tOQmCU.Z s|gouliplisns

Buisiiiiold, S9AI1303[q0 2102 S} UIYHM spy pup A[9pim aJow yooouddo
siy1 uoddns 01 Ajlunuioddo up sapinoud d1S :poayp buixjoo]
‘Sluspisad 10} wOULOpm C)lle]

3s apinoad pup 110dsuniy DAIIOD S|QPUS PUD JOPISUOD SjusWdo|aAap
MB3U 1DY1 2JNSUS 01 SaJINSDaW SapNn|dul ddS a1owi|D 3yl

34

Page

Modsup.u] ajgpuipisng Buijgoul pup Ad1jod Buluup|d

*SUOISSIWS Pa1b|aJ PPOJ 3dNPaJ PUD 1IYS [ppow

D JBAI|9P ‘spooyinoqybiau 9|gouIpISNS 9|gDUS S1I04S BullPUIPIO-0D
s1 D29 ‘A1110YyIND P3| Y} SY "SUOISSIWS UOQIDD PaIo|aJ 1odsupiy
941Ys191592N0|9 9oNnpaJ 03 Jay1a603 3Iom 0} (|SOS) Juaiu| Paipys

JO 1UBWSIDIS P BUIUBIS SBI11IOYIND 311YSI21S8IN0|D UBASS || £202
AJonupr ul ‘9z0z 01 |11 191009S-3 3y} 4O UOIIDNUIIUOD apIsBuoly

uonvy apimAunod puo 329

‘PasDaJdUl 3q ||IM S3X1q J14199] JO JaqUUNu 3y L :ppayp Bupjoo]

*$3]04 J19Y3 1IN0 K102 01 [0211004d 2I8YM ‘@SN UDI SID1440 10Y3 S3[2A2Iq
sapinoid pup Aoijod Buiiom awoy a|qixa|} A||ns B SOY [19UN0D

3yl ‘@A11D131U| BUlIDYS DD PUD SWaYDS YJOA 03 9194 ay3 apisbuoly

A||puiaiu| sa1d1j0d [9ADIL PUD YIOM d|gPUIPISNS

m 0 (
\
\n”u

*UOI1PSIUOCIDIBP
3[2IY3A 02IgN UO [IDIBP J3Y1INny 10} UOIIDSS 91SOM 3y} 935

‘SYluoW 8T JOAO IO} S3|DIYA
214309]9 Z Buisn usaq aADY WD) BUIUD3|D SB131|19D4 SY1 PUD WD)
92UPUSUIDW SPUNOJB 3y | *3|gD|IPAD Bulaq a1n3onJispaul Bulbioyd syl
01 123[gns ‘Swl} J9A0 2141233 YIIM SSUUO] G°E JSpUNn 133[4 S} Ul SI|IIYSA
|10 Bulop|das spJoMO] BUIIOM SI [IDUNOD BY3 ‘02IgN YHM Builinls

uUD|d UOI}ISUDJ] UOIIDSIUOGIDI3Q SIIYIA

-d®3s 3sJ1} |D13USSSD

up SD S3|21YaA Buiinjjod 1sow ay1 1no Buisobyd uo Buisndoy ‘sabpis

Ul 0£0Z Ag 193]} UOQUDD 0487 313U AJ|n} B 9310J49dO 01 AJ1IOYIND 3y}

Jo uoniqwip ay3 Bunnusws|dwi 2o0|d ul Ind som Adljod b ‘ezoz [11dy U]
Ka1jod 1xo 1

‘swwpiboid [poNUUD [PIUBWSIDUI UD UIYHM ‘6202

Aq s19640Yd 00Z 419A0 JSAIIDP 03 8Q PINOM WID 3y :poayb bupoo]
*$20¢ Bulinp sxuod 102 G SS0JOD S1abIoYd

0o Aj@1owixouddp |jpisul 01 up|d BuibioYyD AJ UMO S,|1DUN0D Y1

Jo T aspyd jo uonpjusws|dwi syl ybnoayi bujiom Aj3uslind aio app
Buibipy 10D d11399|3

‘20z Bulinp 2J1U92 UMO1 9Y31 UIYyliMm gny 3]2A2 aindos

pupn 8j0s O BUIIDBID Ul 1SSAUI 0} PaINd3s Usaq sby Buipuny Y00TF
sqnH 919A) 3)bs

SN204 JO sbaly ainin4 7 ayppdn AiaAllaq

ALITVNO UIV B TIAVIL ‘LAOdSNVIL



L
ST
g B

@

- e[

- |
- - -
-]

(1Pu191Xx3) "UuspIPb

UMO JI3Y} 01 SS922D SADY 10U ApWi 10Y3 9s0y) 1o saljiunlioddo
spinoid pup seopds Ajlunwiwod Jo) pup| BuidojaAsp pub uollpsI|IIN
JuswWio||p BuISLaIdUl 0} MBIA D UY1IM SJUSWIIO||D JOJ pUbWIp AJ1I3Usp|

LO
™ (1pus231x3) "AllUnWwod
@ y3 ul Bulusaub upgin oddns d|ay o3 |p13ualod Joos USaIB YIm

(@)
G 101-1001 UO sy00u usaI6 JO SXP1IdN Byl BdUSBN|JUI PpUD B6PINOJUT

ol
0€0¢Z-8¢0¢

(1ouie1x3) "uonouny puo Aypnb

wa1sAso0ds ajowoud pup saioads 1uoddns ‘sipligpy 9401584 pUD
9SJ9A8J 0} ‘wpyudl|dyd SS0Jop sal3iunlioddo uoijpniolsal walsAsods
pup ainipu Aj1nuspl disy o3 109foud buiddpy |pPIdDD [PINION

J19Y3 pup diysiaupind 8IN1DN [P207T 941YSI91S92N0|D 3Yl YHM IO

(ouue1x3 R |pUISIU])

*S11PaJd uIbb 189U ALISISAIPOIQ 40} Yupq 1D1IgDY D JO JUswdodAsp

9y1 9|dwDXad 4O} ‘QUSWUOIIAUSD [DINIDU JNO PJNBJDS pup dA0IdWI 1DY}
SUISIUDYDI3W Pasnq 1934w ybnoiyl aq pjnod Sy "SHUIS UogJpnd [pIniou
pup AlISJ9AIPOIQ BUIdUDYUS UO SN204 B YHM ‘TZ0Z 10V JUSWUOIIAUT

39Ul Y1IM 3Ul| Ul SWa1SAS0I8 pupndxa pupb 8101531 A[DAI10D 0] %99S

(JPuUJ21X3) "HO-UNJ JSIOM MO|S PUD

p|oy 031 a4n3pu Buisn ‘Dbupyd a1owi|d 03 3dpp pup Bulpoo|s 910613IW
djay 01 ybnoioq ay1 ssoIo0 sawayds (IN4N) JuswsBPUD\ POO|4 [PINION
Jo} sa1iunyoddo dojaasp 03 siaulind Jo 9Bups D YIM YJom ‘DjduwipXd J04
‘uo13p1dPpPO PUL UOIIPBIIIW SIDWI|D JOJ SUOIIN|OS PASDJ-3JN1PU UO SNJ04

L20c-veoc

(1ouis1u) “sypluualad pup siamolyp|im Jo Buiyuod
paspaloul pup Buimow pup asn apidiisad paonpal ybnouys "ol ‘uoiinjjod
UOQJDI 9INP3J PUD ALSISAIPOIC SSOSIOUl 01 PUD| PAUMO-|I2UNOD SBPUDN|

(ouJ91x3) "108Y SWBIIXd

ul saJnipiadwa) punoJb pup Jip ay3 Buijood ‘sbulp|ing pup sjdoad 1oy
9poYs apiAoid OS|D UDD J9A0D AdOoupd PaspaJdU| ‘SHJauUaq Bulag||am pup
Y1|pay JaAII9P puUp uoi309104d PoOo|4 pIo ‘94nipu poddns ‘Uoqipd 8101S 0}
J9pJo ul ‘pa3roazold Ajuadoud aip saa.3 Bullsixa ainsus pup ybnoioq ayi
SS0JOD JOAO0D 9343 9SD3IDUI A|JUDDI4IUBIS 01 ‘DDH Bulpn|oul ‘salllIoyinop
19430 Yam A|9s0|2 y4om pup saib63a3pJis Buluup|d |020] a10pdn

€¢0c-0¢coc
SUoIdYy meOO_O._n_

'ybnouoq ay1 ssoJop s220ds |pINIPU JNO Jo Aljonb syl Buiroiduwil wouy paAIDp S1yUDQ Bulag||om pup

yi|oay os|o aJp atayl ‘syopdwi abuoyd a1pwid Bullbbiliw 01 81NgLIIUOD [[D [[IM ‘BUIPOO]} 01 82UBI|ISaJ JNO Bulp|iNg PUD UOQJDD J91sanbas 01
pup| Jno Bulioisal ‘A11siaAIpoIq Buispaldul ‘@iniou 1oy sa2pds plim Bulpuaixa pupb Bulyoalold ‘@ppys apiroid 03 S9a4) 840w Bullup|d ‘U9 DI
10U SI UOIIOD I %SIJ 10 31D SW1ISAS0D9 pup ALISISAIPOIQ ‘D4 [P|IM JNO “9BUDYD 210WI[D 9pISBUO|D ‘SISIID [02160]028 UL BuldualIadxa 240 I\

MBIAIBNQ

ALISUIAIJOIE 3 FANLVN



14

‘Buiusaib upgin sbpinoous 01 Aylunlioddo
Joyuing spiaoad [1m said1jod d1S 4o wuswdojansp syl :ppayn Bupjoo-

's@opds upngJn Jo Aljpnb ayl snocsdwi 01 ybnoiaoq ayi ssoaop siosfoad
9S9Y31 U0 1jIng 9ADY W3] 92pds uaaub sy ‘s1oafosd Buiusaib
upgJn Jo abupJs O Uo 1uads SPM GTOZ Ul Pa4n23s Bulpuni N3 9yl

Bujusain unqin

‘ssaooud
Buiuup|d ay1 ybnoiyi pasinouoy s4p SIUSWWWOI 32pdsuaalb 1oyl
9JNSUD PUD S31S M3U ALIUSPI A[SAIIDD [[IM W3] 3Y] :pP3YD BuIjoo]

"WIDYUa}|ayD 40 1S3\ dY1 Ul PUD MJbd sw|3 s yons sjuswdojansp
MB3U Ul P31JI3USPI USDQ SADY SIS [PUOIIPPY "Pas!|iin Buiaq 2o
3say3 1by3 ainsua 01 pabbubw A|aA1300 Bulaq aJp sjuawio||p Bulisix3

% s92pds usain AHUNWIWOD) 3 SJUSWIIO||Y

e '0aJD UDQJN 3Y1 JO Wallsdn saWBYDS NAN [PJINJ JISAIIBP
o: (G _u,_c:toao_o 9JOW 3|gpUd ||IM PabDSIAUS SI Ydiym ‘dnoub Aiaalep
Ay 911Ys191S92N0[9H M3U 3y} J0 1nd 31D pupb ASPDQ Ul SUspJobuind

SPISPOJ ||PISUI 03 BUWBYIS JIBY1 UO [19UN0D AIUNO0D 341YsIa1S9oN0|D
yHm BuIJom Os|D 8D [12Un0) ybnoiog woyualayd :pprayo Bupjoo

‘A11s19A1p0oIq 9A0IdWI PUD S8SIN0DJ810M J91Ud ABY] 940)9q A||DJN1DU
uMOopPXP3Ig 0} SJUDUIWDIUOD Buimolp Aq Ayljpnb Jayom snoidwi
0S| S92IABP BY] "WID3IISUMOP SISALI PUD SHIOMISU SBDUIDIP JO
BuIPPOJISAO S1DIAS||D PUD JJOUNJ JSJOM 3DDLINS JO MO BY} MO[S [|IM
s921A9p 9say ] *(9soyd ubisap ul suspipbulps SPISPOOI PUD JOOU) ||IH
USPJIDAA 10 dWBYIS b BuplBpUN OS|D 31D | D 3y *(Jpuoiipiado
MOU pup Pa13]dwWod 3|PMS) HIDd UOIUNDN 10 1USWSBDLUDI

poo|4 |pinioN uswa|dwi 01 3SNJ| 3P 2J1YSI91590N0|D

3Y3 Y1m A|3A110100 D02 Bulsiom a1p |12Uno) ybnotog woyualdyd

(IN4AN) uswabpub\ poo|4 [PINIDN

syupq 1p3goy dojaasp 03

uayp1Idpun Buiag }J0M PUD UD|d |07 21691011S BY1 UIYlIM UoISn|oul
s11 apiIsbuo|p ‘HNg 01 yopnoiddp s,|1ouno ay3 Jo Jusawdo|srsp

ay1 Joddns 03 15160|023 up pajuloddo spy DgD :prayp Bupjoo

‘ONg 01 yopouddp s,59D Buidojansp aio pup 308foid
Buiddow |031dDI |PINIOU JI1BYF UO dNTD YIM PIXIOM |1DUNOD 3yl

(dN1D) diyssaunind
SJNIDN [P0 241YSI31SONOID pub (HNG) uIpD 33N Alsianipolg

'ybnoJog ay3 sso0JO0D sewayds buijup|dal
JapIm 1oddns 03 ‘||IH uoldwpyx297 UO PUP|SSIB BUIdD)-YIION
wioJ} p93129]|02 US3Q SbY S3109dS JOMO|JP|IM [DI0] JO HUDQPI3S Y

‘WIDS|0g UDAD|DWIH SAISDAUI

9oNnpaJ 01 3JoM pup Buinup|d samoyipim /sipluusiad spisbuolb

‘911s 40 abups D SS0I2D Ad1jod AD|A MOW-0U JO uoiPIUsaWS|dwil

3Y3 papn|oul spy sIy3 ‘€zoz Bulinp ybnoioq ay3i ssodp A}ISISAIPOIQ
aA0JdW| 0] UdXDIIBPUN SBILIAIIOD JO 8BuDI SPIM 3y3 1no Xoid

031 Aupwwins [pnuup aAIsuayaldwod b apircsd wpa] s82pds UsalH ay |

Ay1s1aAIpOIg 3SDaIdU| 0} PUDT PAUMQ [19Uno) BuiBPUD

‘Aom
SNoJoB1J pUD 1SNQOJ D U] SUOISSIWS UOGJIDI INO BUI118S)40 01 S bW
Builup|d-a341 JNO UOIINQIIIUOD 3Y] BION|DAS [[IM M :ppayp Bupjoo]

"S1eaJ4Y} pale|al-agueyd alewi|d 031 dual|Isal

3uip|ing 40} A3a3e43s uoneldepe Ay e S| weyualayd ul umous sa123ds
9341 JO AJISJaAIp 3y} 8uiseauou) ‘saioads pajeul|jod puim pue 123sul Yioq
yum ‘pani-8uo| pue -oys ‘|lews pue 384e| ‘s9129ds dAI3RU-UOU pUB dAI1BU
JO XIW B 3J9M 353y "SPIOMIO) BUIOO| 009 J9y1iny b 1up|d 01 DDH WO
pa4ndas usaq sby Joddns pup €20z Bulinp pajup|d aiam s93431 000T

Jan02934] Buisbaiou|

Sh204 JO sbaly aining 3 appdn A1saAlleq

ALISUIAIJOIE 3 FANLVN



ST

‘poom BulApd9p UO dAI| 1DY] S910IgDLI9AUI OIjAX0udDS JO Sa108ds OO 19A0 10}
jJuplodwi 3JD S2IN1PBJ 9SBY| ‘SunJ dpS pub POOM PSP ‘SS|0Y 104 ‘SHUNI} MO||oY
SD YoNSs $81Nn10a} UDJS1aA do|aAsp pub Apoinb AjaAilp|aa pjo 196 Aayl supsw

SIY] ", JUd2sauas A|10a,, 310 A3yl 9SND2SQ 34 |P|IM J0J siplgpy poob Ajupjndiind
31D s9aJ] 1NnJ4 ‘A1ISISAIPOIQ |PD0| J0J 10ds 10y D pub A1IAIROD AJIUNWWOD U0}
1uiod P20} D BulWOI9q ‘Sd341 MaU Ylim pajusws|ddns pup a41| 01 3opq 3ybnouq
ua3(g snYy ‘supdk Aubw J9A0 pasi|pINIbU ABJID| SDY Yd1ym 81IS 3y ‘[|IH USPIDAA
Ul p|314 SISADIA\ 1D PJIOYDIO PO UD JO UOIINIOLSDI BY] UO PIdUSWWIOD SDY YJOM
‘A1lUNWIWIOD |P2O| BY] PUD 1SNJ] PJOYDIQ D41YSI91sadno|H 3yl Jo d|ay ayl Y

PJOYDI0O P|o14 SISADIN




(1pu193x3) "Uo1ISaBIP 21qOISDUD JO) JUSWSBUDIID

100J3U0D S, |I2UNO0) AJUNOD 341Yysialsaonoly Jo 3pnd so Alunod

3y1 SS0J0D |PSOdSIp 91SOM POOJ 3|gPUIPISNS 10woid 01 aNUIIUOD
SD [|[9M SD sal31adoud 213SaWOpP-UoU pUD SBWOY BUllSIXa puUL Mau
ul BuljoAoal Ja3oM A316 pup S1INQ J91OM JO 33P1IdN Byl SSP3IOUI
03 sJaunpd J8Y1o pup [1oUuno) AJUN0D 341YsIalSaono|D YilM 3IOoAN
(|ouJa1u]) "s3opJIUOD

pup supjd JUbAd|a4 Ul S3121j0od 931SPM AWOU0D9-1D|N2JID }dopy

0€0¢Z-8¢0¢

(1out23x3) ‘AyisIaAlpolq Jo4 sal3iuniioddo

aJow apinoid pup asn pupb| 3SIWIXOW 01 Ssulq punoibispun

SD YoNs SUOI1D3]|0D 9ISOM JNO Y}IM Buljoap o SADM SAIIDAOUUI 1O}
2JNn1nJ 3yl 01 }00| 01 SNUIIUOD *SIUBWAO|SASP Ul $3111[100) Bul|2Ad34
puD 31SPM 131139 JO UoIsiAoid ay3 860IN0dUS 03 JUBWNDI0(
Buluup|d Aipjuswa|ddng pPasnd0}-21DWIID M3U Y3 960JIaAST

00)
™
%u (IpuJalU]) *SOMUS PAUMO gD 10 UOIIAWNSUOD JDIDM SINPY
©
2} (1ou191x3) "wpaJ4 o1jgnd Jno
SS0JoD uoisiAoid ulqg BuijpAoss ,06 syl uo, syl pupdxa 01 buIyaas sp
[I9M sp ‘B|2A2a4 03 sassaulsng [|pws Joddng *sailuad AjjunwWwod
pup sBuip|ing paipiado pup PSUMO-|12UNO) || SSOJOD papircid
91D S3I11|1004 91SPDM POoO4 pub Bul|2Ad294 81PNbBPD BINSUS ‘TZOZ 1OV
JUSWUOJIAUT 8Y] UIY3IM INO 13S Sjuswalinbais mau sy} Buimojjo4

L20¢-vcoc

(Ioute1x3) “|IpPuUD
0} 91SDM 049Z PUSS YDdIYM SUOIIN|OS BUl|2A281 pub 91SOM X93S 0}
ybnoioqg syl ulyllM suoIlpsIupbBIo J13Y10 pup SasSauIsng sboinooul

(1ousmu]) "91SOM pubD 3sn 213sp|d J19Y] Ul UOIIONPa
ouan(jul djdy 031 $assauIsng |PI0] Y1IM YJOM pup sasiwa.d
pubD S321}40 [I2UNOI Ul 211sp|d 8sn-3|6uls JO 9sn ay3 9oNPaY

(1puss3ul) “sbuipjing
JNO SSOJ2D 93SPM pub uoildwnsuod ABJsus umop aAlp djay o3
‘s1aul4pd Jno Bulpnjoul ‘Hp3s |[o 4104 ABS1DIIS dAI3UBDUI UD dojaAs(

(Jouse1x3) “1910M Buipn|dul ‘uoildwinsuod Aipssadauun
puD 91SOM 92NPaJ 0} dSN3J PUDL BUlILYS A}IUNWWOD 830WO0.d

(jouu91x3)

"91SbM POOJ 3|gpulplsNs pub Bulisodwod swoy ajowoud

01 SNuIlU0) AJIUNWWOD 3y} UIYlIM POOoJ 108 0} poob

paiupmun jo Bulioys ‘BuldINOS POo} |DIO| ‘UoIIdNPaL 81SOM POO)
910wWo4d 0] $8SSaUISNQ PUD S3IIUNWIWOD YIM }JOM 0] SNUIlU0D

€202-0202
suonoy pasodoud

"Adua12149 92un0Sa. panosdwil pue AWOUO0ID JeNdIId B SPIEMO] SAOW 0} SJUDPISAL pue AJuNWWOI SSaUISN 3Y3 YUM }JOM 0}

9NUIU0I ||IM DFD “Sul]pAdaa pue 91Sem 104 JNOIABYD( SSBUISNE MAU SUIALIP SI TZOZ 1DV JUSWUOIIAUT 3Y] "eas pue pue| ssoJde AlsiaAIpolq uidnpal
pue JusawuoJiAud 9Y3 Suidewep os|e aJe ‘sap1d13sad pue SapI21qaay 4O ASN-19A0 ue yum 3uoje ‘syueinjjod Jayio pue d13se|d papiedsiq ‘SwalsAsods
Judpuadap 491eMYSaJ) UO pue SIIYAILIR DIWOUO0ID ‘Yljeay Jno uo spedwi pale|al dAey ued siy] ‘AljigejieAe pue Aljenb Jalem 139)4e ued yoiym
S1ySnoJp pue spooj4 40 suialied |jenuue pue [euoseas 0} sadueyd uipnjoul ‘shem ajdiynw ul Juswadeuew J33eM S}I94je 93ueyd dlewl|d ‘JSAIMOH
"}l paau am uaym pue se Ajddns ssajpua A|Suiwass e 10) sdey Jno eIA ss922e Ases YlM ‘dN 9y Ul 924n0SaJ paill| US110540) B USO SI J91BAN

MBINIDAQ

93SeM B 193eM



LT

LI s
I\

/T
'S921N0S3J 3|qD|IDAD UIYIIM SIYl JOAI|SP 01 Jay1ab01 A|9so|d Buipjiom
AJ3uauind aup Dg1 pup D9 ‘DID PUD UOIHISUDJ] SIY} 01 J3|gpua A3 D
A|931] SI @i1n30NJ3spJUl SIYl 3|gpus 03 ‘0digqn Aq paipJiado ‘yodsp mau
v “Alpojnoilnd ooign pup HgD 404 10d3p 3y1 ulylim 94n1oNJ1SpIUl
BuljgpuUS |DIIUSSSS PUD UOIIISUDI] 3|21YaA Joddns 01 yiloq
papasu s| upnjd pPa1s0d UOIIDSIUOGJIPIBP WIS) BUuo| ¥ :ppayb 6ujoo]

*3|gDIA
o Alpoupuly puo Ajjpuoiipiado aisym ‘sad1yaA 21430918 Aq paop|dal
™ Buiaq AjjpnpoJb SI 198]4 J8puUN pup 1G°€ JINO "sdojarap ABojouydal
%J sp ‘paJinbaJ S| uoIIN|OS 9N WIS}-BUO| Y "S314OUSQ UOISSIWD
(C 1UDDIJIUBIS YHM JOBA D JIBAO 10} OAH UO Builipiado usagq Mmou sAbY
Dmu_QD ulyIIm s, ADH 4o Ayuolbw ayy ‘uoindo [puollisupJy b sy *920|d

u1 Ind u9aQq SADY SOIDIYDA SPooB AADSY 3Y3 J04 S|SN) DAIIOUIDY|Y

2IN1ONJISDIJU] POOY UOPUIMS PUD UOIIDSIUOGIDIDQJ 3|IY3A 03IqNn

‘paJojdxa
Bulag s ddS 21SPM 21040das D 10} |DIIUSI0d pPaYD Bupjoo]

‘|1019pP JO [9A9] 31Isinbal ay3 apiaoud 3,uop Asyi ybnoyl
‘SHIDWIYDIUSQ 953Y1 1SUIDBD Passassp a4p sjpsodotd Buiuup|d pupo
31SDM JSA0D Op AdS 21bWi|D 3yl pub ads As||oA Usp|oD ay1 yiog

31SP/\\ punoJy sjusawndog Bujuup|d Aipjuswajddns Buibpiana

‘paJojdxa Bulaq sl sulqg 193111| 243U82 UMO] BullsIXa o Jusawadp|dal

3y31 yium BulpAdaa 06 ay3 uo pundxs 03 |plualod syl :poayp Bupjoo]

"vzoz |udy Aq

J401S 021gN PUD HED ‘}|9SH [12UN0D 3y} 40} 10dap PPOY UOPUIMS Y3
10 ulq 10y b Aq paisodwod swoy aq ||IM 81SDM POO} PUD 3|gD|IDAD
BuijpAoa4 Jo abupi ay3 panosdwi aAby ‘HGD Buipnjoul ‘s921410 [12UNOD

BuijoA23y 404 SUOISINOIG IOV JuUswuoIiAug Bupobul

"Hg9D Yyiim uoiounfuod
ul Gz/¥¢ 104 pauup|d asnaJ 4o uollowolid 191paJb :ppayp BuooT]

"SOAIIDI}IUI
9SN3Y PUD WID|I3Y TZ UOISIA 3pISBUO|D DaJID 3Y3 Ul SAI3OD S| 8|693l4

BulIpys pup asnay Ayunwiwo)d

*(HgD) sswoH ybnouog
wipyualjay) apisbuolo saipadoid [punwiwod 0] SWBYDS 91SOM

[POOJ [PUNWIWOD 1NO [|0J 0} 3sPI 3yl Buliojdxa aip s :ppayp Bujoo

*AJ1020] UOI11SBBIPUY YllM 10D13U0D DD

DIA A|gOUIDISNS JO PasSOdsIp S| 91SOM POO4 "S3UDQ Poo) ajowoid 01
SSNUIIUOD PUD 3104 BU1j2AD3J JNO 01 PaXUI| WDYUS}BYD Ul SHUDQ POOo}
0] W}l POO} S9IDUOP JDDJIUOD SS|OS |DIISIOW MU BY| °SOSSaUISNQ

Ul UoI1dNPaJ 91SPM POOo} 3BDINODUS 01 SDISWLIOD JO JSqUIDYD 3Yl puUD
aig ay31 yum Bupjiom apisbuo|o ‘suspisal Yilm UoI1pdIunuiwod s
SSOJOD PUD ‘S3I2IYSA UO UOIIONPaI 31SOM POO04 830woid 0} panuiuod
SOY |1I2UN0) 3yl pub 3}ISgaMm s,0gD uo pajowoud si builsodwod SWoH

21SO\ poo4

Sh204 JO sbaly aining 3 appdn A1saAlleq

dILVM B A1LSVM



"3uiles Jaryljesay pue axsem padnpad ‘3uldAd
pue Sunjjem se yons ‘sajA1sayl| ajqeuleisns aiow a|qeus djay Aew 1ey)
S9WYDS DAIIUIIUI |BIO| 9INPOJIUI 0} )9S 01 SISSAUISNG YUM YIOAN\

8¢0¢-9¢0¢

'9]1q1ssod 1aA319Yym dinjeu

spoddns Asy3 JuswuoJiAu 3yl pue uaaJd si Suiseyasnd ‘uogsed
-049z 2Je s3ulp|ing J19Y3 34nsud d|ay 0} ‘suoljesiuedio pue sassauisng
91eAld 19310 pue S|ooyds Se Yyans ‘Siaylo UM aduanjjul 3sn

age 40

‘AjjiqeAojdwsa pue
Q. 5usadxe Juapnis SuldueyUS ‘92J0PIOM 31NINY INO 10} PAPI3U S|[INS
9yl sdojanap os|e 1ng ‘ysnoiog ayi pue [12uno) ayl Joj ssinunuoddo
Ajinuapi 03 sdjay Ajuo 10u yorym ‘ydiaeasals paseq-aiewl|d |ed0|
poddns djay 01 241ys491592Nn0|9 JO AlSIaAIUN 3Y1 UM A|950|2 YIOMN

"SDI2IAIIE UOIIRINPI 31eWI|D S,UdJP|IYD pUB UoIdNPAJ d3sem ‘Jodsueuy
‘A313ud se yons so1doy 01 Suile[aJ ‘saljiwe) pue sjenpiaipul ‘sdnoud
ANunwwod ‘sassauisng 104 d|gejieAe syy|001 03 1sodudis 40 91eal)

*211qnd 8y} 03 3|gejieAe S| uolew.oul djep 03 dn pue
JUBA3|J 3SOW 33 3INSUD 01 JUSIUOI §AM S,|12UN0I 3yl 1epdn Aje|nSay

"S9IUNWWOD pue sjenplAlpul

J0j ,91ewl|d s3uly3 ||e, UO ISIAPE pue wJojul ‘91eanpa 031 djay 1eyl
‘s9]A1s941] uOISSIWL 0497 Suljowoud sa43uad Joosdauniny pasijedusdap
— ,sqny uogued 049z, dn Su1339s 40} sainunlioddo diysiauped aso0jdx3

‘sue|d UOI1LJ101S3J BINJBU PUB UOIIINP3J UOCJED 01 3INQIIIU0D 0] 3|qe dJe

Asy1 1eys os ‘asi114adxa pue spuny ss922e 01 ‘d37 1s4149 se yans sisuped
YyHuMm A|9so|d upjdom ‘sasiadialua pazis-wnipaw pue [jews o} Joddns
apinoud ‘diysiaunied o1azweyualay) ayi se yans swsiueydzsw ysnoay|
uryum

woJj 93ueyd aALp 03 suollesiuedio souped A9y Jno pue Hg) UIyUm
paysi|geisa aq osje ||im suoidwey) d1ewld) ‘suoiin|os juswajdwi pue
puly 03 sasiudiaiua pue saiunwwod sulidsul ‘syedie) alewl|d Jno PawW
3uidjay u1 panjoaul aq 01 ajdoad |edoj 104 Aldeded Sulp|ing — sassaulsng
pue sjooyds ‘sarunwwod Jno uowe suoidwey) ajewl|d, ysijqeis

"92130e4d 1S3 pue uollewJojul Sulieys 3y} pue uolleloge(|od
‘98ueyd Jnoineyaq Suidouan|ul ‘S}UBPISAL PUB SAIHUNWWIOD ‘S3SSAUISN(
ssoJoe diysiaunied 01a7weyualdyd ayi jo uondope Japim ay3 aAL(Q

€¢0¢-0c0c

SUoIYyY meOO_O._n_

‘|eod |eqo|3 9A1329]|02 JNO SA3IYIe 0} papa’du uoilde pue sagueyd Atessadau ayi 1noge 3uliq 0} Jamod 491ea.3 aney
ued am ‘y3noJoq ay3 SsoJde suaplsal pue suollesiuedio yum diysiaupied ur Supjaom Ag suoje 1934e1 0E0Z 9Y3 2A31Yde J0Uued 1 SMOUY |12Un0d 3y |

MBINIDAQ

uoIdY SAIIOI|0D



ge 41

*ybNoJog JNO Ul SUBAS 8y} Jo} A11IgpuInISNS 1910816 191S0) 03
3910.131S SJUSAS JNO SN [|IM M ‘UMO} [PAIISS) D SY :ppayp Bupjoo

Pa

*A|1gpUIPISNS pup SBUDYD 31PWI|D punoJp 1ybisul

pup Bulpupisiapun pjing 01 sdnoib AUNWWOD PUD S|OOYIS O1U|
yo0a11no apiAoid am ‘woyualayd 18up|d 91| s1ounnd yum BuiIom
uonpoNp3 3 uBWABLHUT JBPIAN

‘uollonpal
uolissiwe poddns pup AI9A0294 9JN1DU J91S0} ‘91SPM doNpal

‘s||1q ABJaUS UMOP BALIP 0} [9A8] [pUOSJad D 1D 8303 UDD A3Y3 SUOIIOD
9yl puD SaljlWp) puD S|pnplAlpul ‘sdnoub AllUunwiwod 1o} 911SgaM
JNO UO 3|gD[IDAD S1I3|001 9POW SADY M ‘DAIIDIIIUI 0J87 WDYUd1|dYyD
DIA s9ssauisnqg 40} apiaoid am poddns |po13opad ay3 spisbuoly
S}X]001 PUD UOIIDIIUNWIWOD)

SuUOISSIWa apIM ybnoiog uo

KE_ 31 SslWIXpW 01 8sh ABJaUS PUD 303Y D11SBUIOP YIIM PaIDIDOSSD

SUOISSIWS UMOP BUIALIP pUNoID pasnaoy Ajupjnainind ‘UoilnsIu0gInd9p
1loddns 031 S811IUNWWIOD JNO UIYHIM YIOM [[IM AN :PPaYD Bui{oo

*S313IUNWILIOD JI9Y3 Ul 300 03 9jdoad s|gpbua pub Jamodws 0}

uo13PJIdSD UD Y}IM SUOIIN|OS [P0 pup abupyd a1pwWi|D punoJto Asuinof
Buluips| paj-J99d O UO UMO] BY3 SSOIOD WOJJ SJUspIsal TT Jaylabol
Buibuliq ‘siaxpN abupyD a1pwWID 3yl Joj poddns pup Bulpuny pspiroid
9M ‘gny UOQJpd 0J3Z |PIO| JNO ‘WDYUSIBYD 1BUD|d YIIM BUIIOM
suoidwipy) aypwi|d

396401 QE0Z JNO 193U 01 SUOISSIWS UOQIDD UMOP dALIP

pup Aousidiyie ABisus anosdwi Jsalsp 01 ABa1pJ1s Jno wiojul 01 oddns
Jo swuwpib0o4d siyz Buisn aup SAN “TZ UOISIA YHM BUIOM ‘SAIIDIIUI
0497 WDYua1|ayDd 3yl DIA SUOISSIWS JIaYy]l aonpal 01 ybnolog ayl SSoJoD
ssaulisnq d|ay 03 s|o0} pup Joddns |p213004d dapisbuo|p Buipuny Juoib

1O 000‘00TF BulIdAIIBP UO BUISN04 31D aM ‘pyZz0Z Buling :ppayp Bupjoo

"951U0QIPIBP
01 s129(oud Jo abupi b Buipioddns ‘Tzoz 92uls sdnoub Aunwiwod
SS0J2D UOI12NpPaJ UoIssiwe 1ioddns 01 9|gD|IDAD Q0TS SpPOW SADY S\

"gqNH Yyimoun

3y31 DIA 9|gp|IDAD S| 1Joddns uoilonNpPaJ UoIssIwS pub Aduaidiya ABisus
[p213004d Jayn4 ‘asayl aonpal 01 sup|d 2op|d ul Builind pup suolssiwd
Bullp|nN2|2 Ul sassauisng 3doddns 03 paubisap wiop|d ID||19Z ay3

uo papn|oul sup|d UoI3ONPaI UOGIDD BAIIOD 09 JOAO PUD SIBqUBW Y9T
SpY MOU 1| ‘suolssiws dnoib A1lunwwod pup ssaulsng sapim ybnouoq
BulIsSsSaJIppD J0J B|2IYSA UIDW JNO S| BAIIDIIIUI 0197 WDYUa1|ayDd 3yl

0197 wpbyuaydayd

Sh204 JO sbaly aining 3 appdn A1saAlleq

NOILOV IAILODITIOD



Page 42

sjabiIp] yZ0Z punoibdjopg

SNOILV33dO NMO dNO

SSOUIV AVM FHL ONIAVAT



|¥4
"[IDUNOD 3Y31 SSOJOD BUIXDW-UOISIDSP JNO UIYIIM A|9A1108443 A11jIgpUIDISNS
JOPISUOD 9M BINSUS 03 JUBWISSISSY 10ndW| 910WI|D JNO SUOY O} SNUIFUOD [|[IM SN

*A19104n220 aJow syopduwl uoissiwe £ 2dods Ajlaupnb 01 sn ajgoua 03 SISA|PUD
UOQJD SWI1B4I| PUD UOQJDID palpoquia apinoid 01 siadojanap Aay aBDINOJUS ||[IM A\

‘yonouddo Jno woul 03 ainlipuadxs Jo spalb QT dol JNO SSA|PUD ||IM 9M $Z0Z Buling .

‘2Jn}ipusadxa JO spaJp ainjipuadxs 1saybiy ayi uo 1si1} BUISND04 ‘SUOISSIWD
Z pup T 2dods J19yl uo 1odals pup aunspasw sJtaijddns Bulinsua ‘suoissiwd uibyd A|ddns
Ssalppp 01 pup Buiiodas Jno Jo AdpindoD sAosduwil 03 ABS10J1S JUBWSIND04d JNO WIOoUl O)

suoissiwg € adoos
"SUOISSIWS |PNPISa] SSAIPPD 0] SWSIUDYIDW BUI119S}JO-U0QIDD 1SNQOL AIIUSPI [|IM SN e

'SSWOH ybnoiog woyual|ayd pup 019N WOJ) SOIAISS
Jno Jo} up|d D BulpN[oUl ‘DIPP UOISSIWS INO AQ PIWIOLUI ‘SDBID SDIAISS || SSOIOD
SUOISSIUWS 8onpaJ 0] auljdwil pub up|d AJaAlIBp ‘Pa1SOd D dO|aASP ||IM OM ‘DWIY JBAQ

Page 43

'sup|d uno jo AiaAl@p 11oddns 03 saibalpiis Buipuny 1aylo
1sbuowp [pag udaly ayj buisn ‘sup|d |PIADD pup ddUDUBUIDW O] PaubIp ‘sbulp|ing
SAISUSIUI UOQJDD 1SOW JNO 40} up|d Pa1sod b dO|SASP ||IM M HZ0TZ 4O Py 1Sil Buung  «

suolssiwg g 3 T @doos
‘'ss920ud Jabuo| b aq 031 anoud Apbwi siy3 ‘s|qissod
SD JDJ SO ‘WaY] 9dNpPaJ 0} UO PP3Y SUOISSIWS € 9d0IS INO SSAIPPD [[IM dM ybBnoyl|y

" PUI11195}J0-U0QIPD SO YINS suwsiupydsw

ybnouyi suoissiwd buluipwal ay3j 404 bullpsuadwod Jo A31jIgpIA ay] 240|dXD 03 pub
Bulylou 1sow|p 0] SUOISSIWS g pub T 9d02S JNO 8dNpaJ 01 up|d Pa1sod b JO JuswWdo|aAap
salinbaJ siy] 196401 049z 18U OEOZ SNOIIIGWID UD 18S SOY [ID2UNOD Yybnoiog woyual|ayd

suollpiad DgD SSoIDY
SUOISSILUT SSaIPPY O] ub|d PalsoD b buldojeAa

‘pioMI0) Bujoo] 1uLId1004 UOQIDI DgD Byl olul buirow palpiodiooul
aq [11m A3yl moy 1nogp palinbad aq ||IM UOISIDap Y "Al91pipdas pajunod a4p SUOISSIWS SBWOH ybnolog wpyualayd Ajpusiin)

T

B

L



44

*S)s14 uonndopo
pUD 92UdI|ISBJ D}OWI[D UMO JNO JO MIIA PaWIOJUl a1ow b apisbuojp up|d uonop
Jno Bulleaw 1SUIDBD SHSIJ JBA0D 0] palinbail s Ss1yl Hjuomawipid Ysiy b dojanaq

'SI9qUIBW P33I3|d PUD SIBD14JO 0} PapIAcId BJD SUOIIUSAISIUI Bululpa}
YoIyM punolipo paljiauspl |[Im soidoy Asy ‘swwpniboid uoizonpul Jno apisbuo|o
‘wpa}l Juswdo|aAaq 3 Buluipa 8yl Yim bupjiopn :jusawdojanaq 3 buluipnay

‘up|d uoI11oD a3y} Jo AiaAldp 1oddns 01 SWa] pup sjuswipbdap
S, 09D SS0JOD 13S 9q ||IM SBAI193[q0o a1pwWil|D 214109dS :s19bip) a1pwi) Buidoanaqg

*$390401 UNO 1suIpBD JaAIdp 01 up|d Buipuni b 320|d Ul Ind aM pup S|POL pPaljIIUsPI
1SUIDBD JBAIISP 01 POAJOAUI 84D [9uuosIad ASX 8JNSUS 0] PaM3IAI 3q ||IM SdUBIB43l

JO swa] pup diysiaquisw ‘diysiappna] :Malnay pipog suwwbibold aipbuwi|d

‘up|d UOI10D S1I JBAI[SP 01 3 3|qDUS 0} 34N1dNJIS UoIIPSIUDBIO

93 uIylm paop|d ||om SI pub s18964031 A9X 1SUIDBD JSAIDp 01 saljiqodpd pub

SIS 9Y3 SOY 1l 9JNSUS 0] PAIMIIAI 3q ||IM WD d1bwI|D 3yl :ubisag uonpsiunbiQ

Page 44

T

20z Bulnp pus siy1 ol ‘uollpbsiupbio
3U3 SSOJ2D INg ‘WDa] 910WID Y3 JO SPUDY 3Y3 Ul 1S2J 3,USS0P SS92INS ‘JI9ASMOH

'S196.403 A3 1SUIDBD JBAIISP 01 Pa4N1dNJlS SI pub salinbal 11 sainljIgodod pub S||IYS
3yl Spy uol1psiupbIo 3yl 10yl 9JNSUS 01 PaMaIAI Ajlupjnbas 8q ||IM S196403 uoI3oNpPaI
UOISSIWD 3y} 1SUIDbD JBAIIBP 0] palinbal asijyadxa pup ainionJals uollpsiupbio sy

*Aousbiswi3 a1owi|D ay3 JoJ JaquUaA 18ulgp) b pajuloddo
pup up|d UOIIDD S11 393W 01 W3] dPWID b padojaAap |12UNo0D Ybnotog woyual|ayd

Ub[d UOLIOV
o] JoAlld O] 8DUDUIBA0S) > UbIsaq uollpsSIuLbIO

N
@ @



Page 45

(suoissiwgz jeuidjur) SLIDAVL
NV1d NOILDV A3SIAIY



vc

¥z0z *|12UNOD 8Y3} SSOJOD BUIOWI-UOISIOBP JNO UIYIIM
20 @19|dwod A|9A11094)8 A11jIgDUID]ISNS J9PISUOD OM 3JNSUD
MBINDY 0} JUBWISSassy 10pdw| 33pWI|D JNO suoy o
*A12104n220 310w s1opdwi
(¢ adoos :
Ul UOISAIoUI uolissiws ¢ 8doas Aj13uonb 031 sn sjgpus 0}
| uotsnjoul) SISA|DUD UOQJDD BWII1B)I| PUD UOQJDD PAIPOqUUd

puiobup : e :
: apinoid 0] siadojanap Asx abpinodus o]
up|d uonplusws|duw|
S0 Japisuo) pup yopoiddy o16a1041S sullsqg
o) *S]UBWIBAS SNOIIDA SS0JOD Yopoiddo 21691041
< JNO Wojul 01 31N}HPUSAXS JNO YHM PI1DID0SSD
%J SUOISSIWS 9y} 92npaJ 01 sanjlunyoddo
m.a ene A}13USpP| 03 SSDIAISS PUD SPOOH ‘91N3ONJISDILUI

Jo sJia1ddns A3y 1NO Y1im YIOM 03 ¥o9s
pup ain}ipuadxs Jo spaJp OT do] JNO SSA|PUD O]

‘2Jn3}ipuadxa Jo spalp ain}puadxa 1saybiy

8y31 uo 1sJ1} BUISND0} ‘suoisSIwS g pup T 8dods
J19Y3 uo podal pup ainspsw sialjddns Bulunsus
‘SUOI1DJDPISUOD SN|DA |PIDOS JOPIM apIsbuo|p
3964031 OEOZ JNO 199W PUD SUOISSIWS UIDYD
Ajddns ssaipppo 031 pup Huijziodas Jno o AopindopD
anosduwil 01 A6310.1S JUSWSIN20.4d JNO WIOJU|

1Nno [[oJ 104 G¢0¢
*sISA|pup ¢
9d02s 10} 1202

(suoissiw3 uipyd A|ddng) ¢ adoos

's9%193/5931q J0 uoisiroid ybnoiyi sinoy 3Jom
BulINP 3Sh 3[2IYSA PadNpPaJ PUD UOIIDDIHIIIDD|D
3[2IYSA YIOM 30Npal O] ‘BWBYIS HIOM

Buiobup 01 9]9A2 73 saAI3UdUI Bulibys 12 ‘suoirdo Buiom
-9wioy Buipn|oul ‘s1921440 [10UNOD AQ BulznWIWod
J0J pasn S3|21YyaA 93pALId JO 3sn 8y} sonpal
01 AB310J3S |9ADJ] }JD1S USBIHB D JBAIISP PUD MBIADY
0€oc

'0£0Z Ag suoissiwa
[oNpISal SSaIpPD 03 SWSIUDYIaW BuI119S0
-U0QJpd 1sngoJ Juawajdwi pup Aj13uspl o]

03 pa1usws|dul
8 GC0¢C p3aljiauspl

yonoiddy
4404 saobds usaly
202 suolipJado pup Sa|21YaA ‘Buipjing odiqn
Bulobuo 1uswdojanag
*3|gD|IDAD
s| Buipuny

n
sb pJomuoy Bulg (31404384) BuisnoH |p1d0S

*20p|d Ul upb|d
YAoY4 oljoj3od 19sSD [N} INO
‘SsWwoH ybnoiog

wbyualdyd pub OJIgN Wol4 S92IAISS JNO 10}

up|d b Bulpn|oul ‘DIPP UOISSIWS JNO AQ PaWIouUl
‘SP3ID BIIAISS || SSOJIOD SUOISSIWS d2NPaJ

0} auljawi} pup up|d AIsAllSp ‘PaISOD D 810D O]
‘'sup|d

Jno jo A1aAldp 1oddns 03 saifa1p.41s Bulpuny

Jay3o 1sbuowp |paq usaly ayi Buisn ‘supid |pP1dDPD
pup SdUbUSIUIDW O} Paubi|p ‘sBulpjing SAISUSIUI
UOQJpI 3SOW JNO 10} Up|d Pa1SOD BSIASP O
(suoissiwg [and g ABisu3j

108J1pu| 78 10841Q) suolssiwg g % T 8doos

¥20¢ pul

20¢ PIN

(suoissiuug utey) Ajddns) € adoos 33 (suoissiuzg
ABadu3z 303241pug B 3293.11@) 2 B T 2dodS - S1IDAVL TVNUILNI



Page 47

qc

up|d uolldy
pup MaIASY
%SIY 104 §Z0¢
TO ‘1oday
¥20Z pu3

¥20Z 2¢O

Bulobuo

¥20Z TO

¥20Z 20

¥20Z TO

‘way3 ssalppp 01 upjd uoi3L Up dpIsbuolo
‘> JOMBWDIY ¥S1I BY1 03Ul 3S3Y3 930J0dJI0dUl PUD SHSI
uollp1dppo pupb ddUdI|ISaJ A}13UsPI 03 1odal 91pa1)

up|d uoI12D Jno BulzedW Yim
Pa1D120SSD SHSIJ A}13USPU| DHjJoMBWD.S XsiY b dojanaqg

‘'sIaquuisaw pa3d9|9

pup sJ921410 01 papiAoid aip suoiluaAISIul Buluipiy
Y21ym punoup paljinuapl ||im saidoy Ay ‘ Juswdolanag
2 Buluina] Yyim Bujiopp 3uswdojanaq 7 buluipa)

‘up|d uoI31oD 3y3 Jo AsaAldp Hoddns 01 swpal
pup sjuswlipdap s,0gD SS0JOD 13S 8q ||IM SBAI1303[qo
91owil|d o13109ds :s19b64p] Aapwi) Buidojanag

'S196.D3 N0 1SUIDBD JSAIIDP

031 up|d Buipuny b 920|d Ul Ind am pup S|POL Pal}IIUSPI
1SUIDBD JSAII9P 03 PIA|OAUI 31D |SUU0SIad £33 ainsus 0}
POMBIADI 9q [[IM 9DUDID4DJ JO SWIS] pub diysiaquaw
‘diysiopoa :maIndYy pipog swwbiboid 91pwid

‘up|d uoI1oD

S11 JOAI|SP 01 11 9|gPUS 03 8JN3D2NJ1S UoIIPSIUDBIO 3y}
uIyM paop|d [|Bm S| pup S1896103 A3 1SUIDBD JBAIIBP
01 sal|Iqpdpd pup S||IYS 3yl SOY 3 94NSUS 0} POIMSIADI
3q ||!M wpa ] 93pwWi|D ay] :ubisaq uonpsiubbiQ

°90UDUISA0Y) pun CO_HUm_CC@LO

9IUBU.IOAO0D - SLIADAVL TVNUILNI



Page 48

9¢

UL,

UULNULULUAL

UL
—

s}9bIp] 9Z0Z-¥20T
suoissiwug

SPIM Yybnoiog buissa.ippy



LC

‘'ybnoioq
331 SSOJOD sainspaw uolpidppo sbuoyd
91pwWl > Bulnusws|dwi 31D M pud SIyl o)

‘paJD A3 SIY3 Ul

sinoqybiau Jno apisbuolp wayl yum Aj@so|d
3JOM 01 paau ||IM am ‘Aluoyiny Jiodsupu]
3Y3 34D |12UNOD AJUNOD 341YSI91SAONO|Y) SY

‘Buiuup|d ABisua paip |PIO|
3q ||IM SDaJD 99J4Y] 9S9Y3] Ul SUOISSIWD SPIM
ybnoioq umop BUIALIP 0O} J9|gDUD [DIIID Y

1odsupl] .
SUOISSIWT |DLIISNPU] R SSDUISNG

BuisnoH .

Page 49

spaJp 216210.41s A3 € Ul 108 asiiiond
03} 9ADY M SUOISSIWD UMOP dALIP O]

‘(T Xipuaddy 8ss) "196pNg UOQIDPD YN [|PISAO dY} JO SIDYS

JNO P99DXd 1,UOP SM 3INSUD 03 SN IO PAPS3U S| UOIIOD PASNI0) PUD IJIMS *SUOIIDISdO |pUISIUI

UMO S1I UIYIIM S20p 3l SO S396.101 9SaY3 1SUIDBD JSAIISP 01 |0JIUOD JO |[9A3] WIS 3yl ALY 1,Usa0p 1
‘suoISSIUWS apIM YBnoloq ssaippb 03 SI9A3| Jo abuni b SOY |I2UN0D 3yl IS|IYM "6TOZ Ul woyual|ayd
SS0JIDD SUOISSIWD ZOD P98E JOAO PI1PWIISD AIOJUSAU| SDE) 9SNOYUIBIH WOL) S2INBIY [PUOIIDN

ZNS3d 6T0OZ-S00T ‘S213513101S |[PUOIION 0D Alloyiny 0207

%EC
101235 2119nd
9 [e1DJaWWO)

%1T
[euasnpuy

%EV
a1sawoq

%EC
uodsuel |

peoy

20D sauuol 00Z‘98¢E
(6T0OZ) suolssiwg ybnoiog woyualsyd
AJO1UBAU| SDY BSNOYU33ID YN

"dul|SWIl pup up|d UOIIONPSI UOISSIWS 3|qIBup] di0W

D Jo JudswdolaAsp 9|qoud 01 pup Yyonoiddp 21681041S JSPIM JNO JO JUSWdO|SASP wIoul 0] s3o9foid
JO punoJ AjJpa JNO wou) Buluipa| 310 SN\ 96DIS A|UDS UD 1D UIDWSI M ‘UOIIDNPAJ UOISSIWS

JO spaJp Ajuolid ul USASMOH UOIIOD SAI10001d USXD] SADY M SJ9YM SD3ID JO JSqUWNU D 3D 33yl

SUOISSIWT
opIM Ubnoliog ol yonoiddy o1balnlls InO buldojaaa



8¢

*aADY Apbw Asy] saniunjioddo yimoub 3 sjjixs usaib

Aup Buipunisispun spiIsbuo|p (3]duw XS 104 SHI0MISU 103 UOCQIDI MO| JO UOIIDISUSb

ABisus s|gomaual DIA SO YoNS) ‘Suoilntado aSIu0gIpIap PUD 3sn ABIsus uMOp SALIP

wayl djay o1 apiroid upd am 1uoddns syl wIosul 0] SIS|QOUS PUD SI31IID] J19Y] apiIsbuo|b

‘Aouinol uo1zonpal uogipd UMO JI9Y] PUDISISPUN 19319Q 0} YBNoJog 9yl SSOIOD SID]HWD
[D13UDISQNS 1SOW JNO Yi3IM abpbud pupo Aj1uspl 01 SI dais 1Xau JnQ :snooq R 1ppdw| .

‘WIpYual|ay) $s04op sdnoub Ajlunwiwod pup sassaulsng ‘suollniiisul yoddns o}
yoooiddo pajuswbas b apiaoid [[Im ABS1DJ1S JNO ‘SpiomIo) BuiyooT :yopoaddy 21691041S

09D AQ S3INGS J0) 92p|d ul s109[oud uollonNpas UOQIDD PUD ADUBIDILD
ABiaus a|qIbupn] JSAIIDP 01 S|qD|IDAD 3pPW Udaq sby uoddns [P21300ud |PUOIIIPPD
apisbuo|p Buipuny uoIb YOOTF ‘9spyd A1aAldp 8yl 01Ul SAOW M 20z bulung :A1anlleg  «

Page 50

"gNH YIMoun syl DIA pataAldp Bulsq SI J03108S |DIDIBWUWOD 8Y3 Ul pasnd0y
AJjoo1j198ds sup|d uollpSsIUOgIPIaP 91P|NWLI0) 03 1Joddns [poI3opId JByliny ‘uollippPO Ul *dsh
01 Wayl 01 9|gD|IDAD SpLW SADY 9M WLI0J1p|d JD||9Z 3yl UO up|d UOIIDSIUOCQJIDI3P SAIFOD
up BUIADY SSSaUISNg 9S8Y3 JO 79 YHM ‘S1961D] 019Z 18U QEOZ S |I2Uno) ay3 03 dn Bulubis EE
S9SSaUISNQ 9T Ul Pa1|NSaJ SOY ‘TZ UOISIA YlIM PaJaAIIBP ‘©AIIDIIUI 0197 WDYyual|ayd 3y} E
‘91pp O] ‘PBJD SIY3 Ul UoIIdD Ajupd padojansp pub yopoiddp sbpa-bulpoa| b uaypl sby D9D

SUOISSIWT
IDLISNPU] > ssaulsng ssalppo ol ABalnllS JINO DUIA|OAT



Page 51

"MN @Y1 40 supd Jayilo ssouon sayoposddo 9211004d 1599 Buibpiars| ‘@oupbpinb
|p2130p4d apiAoid 03 SNd0j d14109ds auinbal ||Im 11joa3a) Auadoud olio3siy 03 yooosddo ung .
"S||1S udaJub pub 11j0J134 d13sdwop 01 yopoiddo
216910431S JNO WIOoJUl 01 Pash 3q [[IM SIYl ‘YN 9Y3 4o s1ipd J1sylo wouy sajdwpxs ad1300.4d
199 apIsbuo|y ‘sswoy J1ayl Jooid-ainini 0] UOIIOD D] 0] SBWOY OF SSOJIOD SIUdPISSI
Buljgoua pup Busmodwa ‘11404184 pup BulAps ABisua punoip oddns pup uoIIDWIOUI
JBA1IBP |IM [D1I} AJlUNWIWIoD pooylnoqybiau ay) ‘udy ul bulpuswwo) :1joaay Auadoid .

"9]qISpa} A||P2IWIOU0DD pup A||D21UYIS] a1aym ‘oljojiod juswdojansp

S}1 SSOJOD 0437 19N 0 AJaAlap ay3 spJomol Bupjiom si gD ‘bBuisnoy |pID0S pjing

M3U 104 °3|gD|IDAD SBW023q Bulpun} SO Pa1PIS|SIID 3] ||IM 1104131 OS ‘Bulpuny S|gD|IDAD

3yl vx A|@1pwixoiddp 1502 ||IM S8SNOY 00S ‘v DYl SSOIOD 11404181 0197 19N BuLIAldp

‘J9NOMOH 0£0Z AQ S196.401 ADUBID1}4D |DIUBUWIUISAOD PB3IXd PUD JBAIIBP 03 pasn Buiaq

S1 10Y3 JUsWlsaAul pauup|d Jo awwpniboud pa1sod b spY SBWOH Yybnoiog woyual|ayd
‘Buiuup|d wual Buo| bulinbal ‘Buibua|pbyd SI 110419y :11J0J19Y BUISNOH |PIDOS .

‘up|d |P207 21681041S 9Y3 Hoddns 03 sa1o1jod JO JuswdO|aASP WIOJUI PUD SSDUDAIIDD})D
S11 @Aoudwil 01 syjuow 8T 1S4l 9yl Buinp pasi|iin usaq soy 1l Moy Builpn|pAs 840 S\
'S19dO[9ASP 10} YJDWYDUSQ 0JSZ 13U D30 b paplAoid sby dds o1owl|D 9yl :pjing MaN .

'salliadoud oli03siy
Buipnjoul sswoy Bullsixa Jo 11304184 01 yoposddo up dojaasp pjnoys am ‘Buisnoy |p120S
Jno Joj up|d D pub sawoy p|ing mau 0} yopoiddpo Jno sasspdwodus 1oyl AB210IIS D DADY SN

'Sn20y Jp|nd11ipd alinbal pup abus||pyd |puoiipp apirocid yoiym saijiadoud

D1101S1Y pup Pa1sI| JO JqWinu Jaybiy b 9ADY 9M ‘wWpyual|dyd UIYIA\  sispbq Aedoad
Aq Ayuadoud b uo pasyopouddp aq 031 spy 11 s ‘Buibua|pyd AjwsIixd si 31jo11a) Aliadolid
"S9A|OAD XIW ABJsuUd 049z 13U 3yl SO aininy ayl

10} 114 210 oY1 sa1liadoid aApDY 9M ainsus 03 JupIodwl aup sawoy uaidiye ABisus ‘Ayljonb
YBIH ‘suoIssiwa apIM Yybnolod JO %2zt 01 dn 1o} JUN0I2D AJ3USLIND SUOISSIWS J13sawoq

SUOISSILUS BuUISNOY ssalppo 0] Abajuls o buldojaAa



SUOISSIWS Pa1b|24 PDOJ 92NPaJ PUD HIYS [DPOW D JBAIIBP ‘sSpooyinoqyblau a|gpuipnisns
3|gpus 01 sinoqybisau JNO Y1IM A|SSO|D YIOM ||[IM SA\ "0E0Z AQ SUOISSIWS 0JSZ 13U SA3IYDID pUbD
UOoI1DSIUOQJDI3P Jodsupna] 3Xon] 0] 109loud B41ysIa1$adN0|H D UO JBY1aH603 YJOM 01 paydnal
usaq spy ‘s|1oUNO) /2 || Ag paubis ‘usawaalbo Bupaiqpunolb v - uolldy apimAiunod

9|qissod a1aym wayl Buoubyua pup SHJIO0MIBU BullSIXS YyHm juswdoansp mau bullpibajul .

{SaA11D11IUI JJodsupJ) Pa] AluNWwWod 01 1oddns pup syul| 1odsupJal pa1piBalul paroidwi
‘JuswdojaAsp Mmau ybBnoldyiy SPaJo upgIN PUD [PINJ Ul SSDIAISS 01 SS920D Buinoidwl

{SjuswdojaAap Mau ||b Ul s31n0oJ Bul|oAd pup
Bupjjom 340S pup sxuI| 310dsupay o1ignd usnbai} mau Buipinoid pup Bullsixs Buinoidwil

‘spooydnoqybisu a|gqoX|oM puUb 3|qISSa22D ‘Ayijpay Joj suolido |pas Buljgous .

:Aq ybnouoq ayi ssouop salyiunyioddo |9ADI] SAII0D
up 140dsupJ] a|gpulplsns a|gpous 01 Allunuioddo up sapiroid 4TS : (d1S) up|d |P207 d21691041S

PaTnge 52

"$20Z Bulinp syJnd Upd gD G SS0UoD s1abioyd o Aj@1owixoisddo

[|0ISUI |]IM T 3SDYd ‘up|d |oNuUUD [PIUSWSIOUI UD UIYIM ‘6202 AQ S4aBioyd AJ 00Z J9A0
JaAIap 031 swio upjd Buibipyd A3 s,09D 'H20Z Bulinp 213Uad UMOI Y3 UIYIIM gny 3]9A2 a1ndas
pup 3j0s L BUIID3ID Ul 1SSAUI 0] PAINISS US3Q Sby Bulpuny YOOTF :Uuol1dy apIA ybnolog

"'SUOISSIWS Jodsupbal umop bulqg pup Ayjonb Jip

anoidwi ‘suoildp Ay ssauppp 01 wayl YiM A|9So[d AISA YIOM 0] Padu OS|D ||[IM oM ‘Lodsupul
Buipipbai A1110YyINo POI3| BYI U0 DIH SY ‘0E0Z O3 UD|d UOIIDY AlljpNY JIy Up pajuswa|dwi
9ADY DD ‘ez0z bunng ‘1odsupJl o1jgnd pup sppood ‘buiuup|d jiodsupJy Jo) Jamod
Bupw-uoISId9p pub Buipuny 8yl pjoy pub Alioyiny odsupni] ayj aJ4o |1ouno) Auno)d
311YysJ91sa0n0|9H 1S|Iym Buluupn|d uswdo|aaap pub Bupjiod 1oy a|gisuodsal a1o woyual|ayd

Jodsupnuy






‘padojansp

s| 308foid syl spb wpa] uolpiausbal ayl apisbuo|o
ads ayi1 yim sjpob juabuliis ayj 3suiobo paipon|pAd
8¢ 01 SNUIIUOD ||IM A3[|PA USP|OD 4O JUSWdO|aASP By L

Bulobup

"JUDAS|DJ 8J18YM P3JISPISU0D S| A19A0D8J 81n3pU

pup 3|qpPUIP]ISNS S| JuawaJindoid ‘s1961D1 S,WPYUSYBYD
yym paubijp aio supjd UOI3dONPaJ UOISSIWS JIdY3
2Jnsus d|ay 03 ‘suol1psiupbio pup sassauisng 93oALd
JBY30 pup S|OOYIS SO YINS ‘SIBYI0 YIIM SdUdN[Jul 3sn

Buiobup

*aApy Apbw Aay3 saiiunyioddo yimoub 3 s||ixs uaaib

Aup Bulpupisiapun spisbuo|b (s|dwpoxs 104 SHJoMiau

108y UOQJDD MO| JO uollpisuab ABJisus s|gomaual

PIA SO Yons) ‘suolipiado asiuogupI9p pub asn ABisud

12 €O umop aAlIp wayl djay o3 apinoid upbd am yoddns
31 WJOoJuUl 01 SJS|QDUS PUD SJ314IDg 418yl apisbuo|p

‘Asuinol uoilonpal UOQJDI UMO JIBY] PUDISISPUN

191199 031 ybnoJuog ay3 SSOJOD SI911IWS [DIIUDISANS

1sow Jno yim sbpbus pup Aj1zuspl o3 ‘g0z bulung

e 54

Pag

0£0Z *1964031 0£0Z 2Y3 YHIM BUl| Ul SUOISSIWS JIay} 8oNnpal 03
Aqg JaAlap  WDYUS1|3YD SS0J4O0 sdnoJB AHUNWWOD pupb Sassauisng

0] ‘asinad ‘suoliniiisul buipioddns 03 A6a1pa1s pajuswibas
03120 D JSAI[SP 03 100JIUOD PISIASI 10 JSPUD} PUD 3SINDY
‘sy3oafoud |nysse20Nns dY3 SSOJID S,J|AS 104 UOIIdNPaSI

GZ0Z TO uoQJpd 3dnpal 03 ‘poddns |pa11dpId [PUOIIIPPD

apisbuo|p Buipuny U6 XOOTF J9AIIBA A||NJSS82INS

SuoISSIWg
A3lUNWIWOD 73 |DUOIINIISU| ‘|DLIASNPU| ‘ssaulsng

‘MN 8y3 Jo sund

Jay31o ssouop sayopoiddo 9213004d 3s8q Buiboisns|
‘@ouppinb [po13opid epiroid 01 snooy d1j109ds

alinbaJ |1m 11301391 Aadoud oi01siy 03 yoopouddo unQ

G¢-v2oc

‘S||IXS U946 puD 11J04134 dI3SdWOpP 03 Yyopoiddo
216910.43S JNO WJOJUI 03 Pasn 3] [|IM SIYl ‘MN aYy1
Jo supd 19y3jo wouy sajdwpxa 9211004d 3599 apisbuoly

20z vO

'Sawoy JIay3 jooud-aininj 03 UOIIDD 3XD] O} SBWOY

0G SS0JoD sjuaplisal Buljgoua pup Bulamodws ‘11304184
pup Buiabs ABisus punolp 3yoddns pup uolIPWIIOUI
JBAIIDP |IM P11 AJlUNWIWOD pooyinoqybisu

ay1 ‘|ludy ul Bulouswwo) :Hjoa39y Aadoud

Gcoc
U2JDN O

"9|qD]IDAD S8W023]
Bulpuny SO Pa1PIS[S2D 3] [[IM 11J0J13J OS ‘Bulpuny
9|gD[IPAD 3Y3 77X Aj@1powixoiddp 150D ||IM Sasnoy

00S ‘v @Yl SSO0JOD 11404124 0497 19N BULIDAIIP ‘JOASMOH
*0£02 Aq s196.403 AoUdI214)9 |DIUSWIUISAOD PB3IXd pUD
JOAII9P 01 pasn Bulag sI 10yl JUsWISaAUl pauup|d jo
awuwpJiboid pa1sod b soy HGD :11§0419Y BuisnoH |P120S

Buiobup

*9]q1SP3} A||P21WIOUOIS pUD A||P21UYDa] a1aym ‘oljojiiod
1USWdO|aASP S1I SSOIOD 0197 19N 4O AISAIIBP 3y
spJomol Bupjiom si DgD :BuisnoH [P120S pjing MaN

Buiobup

*s196.40) 049Z 19U QE0Z S1l ISUIDBD ISAIISP

s¢-veoe 01 Wbyual|ayd a|gpua o3 Juawdojanaq Ad1jod d1S

"SYIUOW 8T 1541} Y3 BuLINP PasI|1IN UsaQ SOY 3 MOy
BUIION|DAS 240 SA\ "SI9d0|SASP 104 HIDWYDUSQ 019Z
12U 103D D paplroid SDY AdS 21powi|D 3yl :pjing MaN

(uonpbn|pA3T)
¥20Z TO

suolssiw3g BuisnoH

suoissiwg BuiSnoHy @ ssauisng- S13DAVL TVNIILXT



‘sa1padoud o13saswiop

-UOU pub sawoy BullSIXd PUD Mau Ul Bul|2AdaJ Ja1oM

0€0¢-820¢ K216 pup s11nQ J930M JO 8¥pl1dn ayjl aspaJdul 0} sisulipd
J3Y10 puDp |19UN0D AJUNOD 8JIYSI91SSIN0|D YHM IO

*S10JJUO0D pub

DEdz=Ede sup|d JupA3|aJ ul saldljod 91SOM AWOUOD3-10|N41D 1dopY

*K11s19A1pOIq J04 sainlunyioddo

9JowW 9pIA0Id puUD SN PUD| BSIWIXDW 03 Sulq
punoJBiapun SO YydNS SUOI1DS||0 DISOM 34NINY JNO YIM
Buljpap 40 sApm aAI1IDAOUU] Buipn|oul JUswNnoop Buluup|d
Aipjusws|ddns 91SPM PS|IDISP SI0W JO) PISU BY3
J9pPISUO0D "S1UBWAO|DASP Ul 313|100 Bulj2Ad3. pup 93SOM
191199 40 uolsinoid ay3 abpinodous 01 Juswndog Buluuo|d
Aipjuswa|ddng pPasnd0}-910WIID MaU Y3} 96DIDAT

1444

"uoI}dNPaJ 3ISOM
|[oNpIsaJ pupb poo} apisbuo|b ‘@snal ajowoid 01 anUIIU0D

‘ybnouoq ayi ssouop uoisinoid uiq Buijphoau
ob ay1 uo ayi pupndxs s1pludoiddp asaym pup Mainsy

"8]2A231 01 sa11uad AJlUNWWOoD /sassaulsng
[[ows 4o} Jyoddns o) Juoddns pup 921ApD 3sodubis

‘Buipxond d13sp|d 9|qIX3|) puUD

SuU0QJpD Bulpn|oul ‘OpIsgJay 1o pub sBulpjing paipiado
pUD PAUMO-|I2UNO) || SSOJOD PapIA0Id I S3I|I0D4
91SOM PO0y} pup BuloAdal 91pNbapp ainsus 01 ‘TZ0Z

10V 1USWIUOJIAUT 8y UIYlIMm siuswalinbal ayi uswsa|dwi

Bulobuo

*S9I111|10D4 J94SUDI} 9ISOM pup 10d8p
Buipn|oul A|j020]| 811 93SOM 21693043S pPajoold-aininy
9S1U0QJDPI3P D SPIA0Id 03 S|12UNOD UMD YIIM HIOAN

spJomuo
144014

1910\ 9 91SPAN

'sa1691043s [PUOIB3J JaPPOI] YIIM Wapup) ul padojarsp
24D WDYUa3}aYyD Ul saliunyioddo uoiipiolsal

Bulobup
: Wd3SAS028 pup 84n3puU Bulnsus ‘diysisuliod ainioN
[D207 241YS193S92N0|9 8Y3 DIA SINOqybIau Ylim 3IoMm o]
*S11paJo uIpb 389U AlISI9AIpOIQ
J0J Yupq 30319y O JO JUsWdOo|aASP 3Y3 SO Yoans
SPIOMUQ  ‘JUSWIUOIIAUS |DINIDU JNO pJonbajos pup anosdwi 10y)

202 SwISluUbYdaW pasbq 1axJpWw ybnoayl Bulpn|dul ‘syuls
UOQUDD |DINIDU pUD A1ISIBAIPOIQ BUIDUDYUS UO SND0Y D
YlIM ‘swialsAsods pupndxa pub a103sal A|SAIIOD 01 %295

*}JO-UNJ J91I0M MOJS pUb p|oy
01 ain1pu Buisn ‘@bupyd a1pwWI|D 03 3IdPPD PUL BUIPOO|4

Buiob
UIoBHO 9161w djsy 01 ybnoioq syl $s0IO0D SawaYds (NAN)
1USWABDUD|A POO|4 |PJinIDN Jo4 salyiunjioddo dojanaq
"D1491140 BUI1I9SHO ISNCOJ ISUIDBD SUOISSIWD
¥20¢

spb ssnoyusaib uo 1ppdwi swwpiboid a1pn|PAT

*}09Y SWDJIXd Ul saJnipiaduwal punolb pup

J10 8y3 Buljood ‘sbuip|ing pup sjdoad Joj spoys apiroid

03 pup uoi1d930id pool} pib ‘@iniou 14oddns ‘uogquod

0£0Z-720C ©4031S 01 JapJo Ul ‘pardajold Ajuadoud aip saau3 Bullsixa
2INsua pup ybBnoloqg syl SSOIDD JBA0D 93] dSDaIdUI

Ajpupoi1ubis 01 QD9 Bulpn|oul ‘Sa111J0YIND JBY10 YHM

A|9s0]2 1om pub sa1baipJiis Buiuup|d [po0o| 10PN

AyIsIaAIpoOlg pUD 2JNION

1938 B 93ISe\ ‘DinjeN- SLIADAVL TYNIILXI



"9say3} punoJp

Buiobuo 910JOCD||0d PUD BuIPUN [DUISIXS JO $32IN0S AJIIUBP|

*2gD puoAhaq syosfoid

puny 03 a1plidoiddo a1aym [P 1USWIISSAU| USBIY 3sN
‘syoafoud

UOI10J01S3J 8JN3OU PUD SUOI1DD 3pwWil D puny djay
GZ0Z-¥2Z0Z 01 SJ19ylo pup (71D) AAs] aunjonuisoujul Alunwwo) syl
‘sjuswiaalbp 9OT UOIISS SO YoNns ‘HNg ‘swisiupydsw
Buluup|d pup |PB3| 3o0jun :Bulpung usain

Buiobup

‘saniunyoddo

apIM ybnoioq Aj13uapi 49119q 03 AJJUNWIWIOD SSauUIsSNg
[020] pUPISIBPUN "HTD 3Y} UIYIM A1ISISAIPOI] 4O

SSO| 8y} Jo uoljuanaid pup Aouaidiye ABisus pasubyus
‘uolin|jod pup SUOISSIWS UOQJDD pPadnpal s30woud

103 S311IAI10D 21WOU02d Ul Bulisaaul Ag ‘Auiouodd
usalb syl moub A|pidos 01 suollpsiupHIO PUD S3131I0YIND
J3Yy310 pup wpa] juswdo|aAsq d1Wouod] [12UN0D
A3unoD 941Ys491592N0|9H YHM MO\ JYIMOID) UddID)

pulobuo

Page 56

aJnjonJisouajul Bulbioyd .
abpuols A1211bg .
S}JOMISN }03H ’® UOIIDIBUSYH ABJsuU] ‘swip4 ID|OS

sSans .

SulpY) 19N A}ISI9AIPOIg o

"(IUPAS|aJ B19YM UD|d [0207 21691041S BY3 O}

paubi|p) sa1unlioddo JuswisaAul uasub Jo oljojliod

9z0zZ-720z HBuidojansp ‘s|qissod Janaiaym S1148uUaq |DIUSUIUOIIAUSD
9|di3jnw sdoaJ 10Yy3 91N3ONJIISDIJU] JUDI|ISDI-DIOWI|D

pUD UOQJDD-MO| Ul 1SBAUI 0] YO0 :JUBWIISDAU| US3ID

YIMOID) Ud315/3JN10NJISDIJU|
U345 Ul JUBWIISaAU| pup Buipund

‘sjuswaJinbal Buluoz 3iomiaN 1aH
Buipn|oul ‘AisAlp pup ABaipJiis AB1sus palp [POO| 3Y1
10 1uswdojanap 1oddns 01 4921340 ABiau3 up }INIDDY

¥z0z 20

‘paiiauspl

[p13Ual0d |D2IUYDD] By} 03 paxull ABJaud ajqomausl
10} UoI11P20| pup S1561p] 214109ds Bulllas ‘ebniols
K19110g pup A[IQIX3]4 pUDWSP ‘SHIOMIBU 103Y
‘uollpisusb ABisus sjqomaual Joj saldljod Buidojansp
Buipn|oul ‘up|d |P207 216910.41S 9yl UIYIIM PIISA0D
Aj@10nbappo si ABJsus sjqomaual 1o} [pliusiod ayl
ainsus 0} Adijod Buiisixa uo pjing saidljod 41s a4niny
ainsu3 -ABJsus 9|qPMaUSI 0} JW WO 0} SI8do|3A3pP 03
|[oubis o sapiroad @dS 210WID 3YL :uUD|d S9|gPMBUdY

G¢0c-vcoc

*(Mmo]aq 93S) 9|04 J01DUIPJIO-0D HJOMISN

103H |pi3ualod Bulpnjoul ‘Ajddp suolrdwaxs Jo

GZ0Z -¥20Z uo11do 049Z 19U SAIIDUIS}|D UD 910J1SUOWISP O} S|P 3D
s19dOo|aASp SSJUN }J0M]SU D 0} UOIIDBUUOD dJinbal |IM

10y3 siuswalinbai Buiuoz y1omisN 10sH Joj aipdaid

‘wbyualdyd
JO 9J3Ud2 3y} Ul puD AS||DA USPJOY Ul SHIOMIBU JO
A11[1q1sP3} YsI|qoisa 01 Apnis A1l[IqISDa) YIOMIDN 109H
919|dwo) :j3uswdojanaqg }I0MIaN IPSH UOGIDD MO

¥Z0zZ €0

ABisu3z

JUdWISOAU]T R AB1ouz - SLIDAVL TYNIILXT



Buiobuo

nobuo

57

Page

Bulobuo

‘Aj1qoAojdws

pup aouUslIadXa JUSPN1S BUIDUDYUS ‘©D104I0M

9JN1N} JNO 10O} POPISU S||1MS 8y} Sdo|aAap 0S|b 1nq
‘ybnouog ayi 4o} saniunyoddo Aj13uspl 01 sdjay Ajuo
10U YdIYym ‘Yoipasal paspg-aiowl|d [p20] oddns djay
03 941Ys431532N0|9 JO A1ISISAIUN YL YUM A|SSO|D IO

*S9I3IUNWIWIOD PUD S|PNPIAIPUI JO} ,B10WI|D

sBulyl ||, UO SSIAPD PUD WIO4UI ‘©3pdNps 03 d|ay
10Y3 S8J3u82 jooisdaining pasi|pJIuad8p — SNy UogIpd
049z, dn Bui1lses 1oy} saiiunioddo diysisulipd sio|dx3

‘sabua||pyo

K93 01 suoi1n|os usws|dwi pup puly 03 saslidiajus
pup sailuNWWod Buliidsul ‘s196401 930WID JNO }99W
Buid|ay ui paajoaul aq o3 ajdoad |p20]| Jo} A31opdpD
Bulp|ing — sassauISNg PUD S|OOYDS ‘S313IUNWILIOD

Jno Buowp ,suoidwpy) a10WI|D, YIIM YJOM

UOI10Y 9AI1109(|0D

SUOISSIWS Pa1p|aJ PPOJ 3dNpPal

puD 1}1Ys |DPOW D JBAIIBP ‘spooysnoqybiau ajqouinisns
3|qpous 01 dnoubxiom DB BIA OEO0Z AQ SUOISSIWD

0J3Z 13U 9A3IYDD PUD UOIIDSIUOQJIDIBP JodsupJ]

3o 03 103foud 811Yysia1s92N0|H B UO J18Y1aH60] YJoMm
01 JuswaaJbp 8y} Juswsa|dw| - uondY apIMAUNOD

0€0¢-12c0cC

"9|qissod asaym wayy Buidpuobyus pup

S)JO0MIBU BullsIXa Yim juswdoljaasp mau buljpibalul -
{saA1lpI3IUl JJodsupay

pa] AJlunwiwod 03 14oddns pup s)ulj Jodsupuy
pa1pubaiul parosdwi ‘Juswdo|aasp mau ybnoayl spaip
upgJN PUD [PINJ U]l SBDIAISS 01 $S820D Bulroudwil -
{sjuswdolaAap Mau [|b Ul S83N0J

BuljoAd pup Bupfjpm 84ps pup s)ul| JodsupJi o1jgnd
1uanbai} mau Buipinoid pup Builsixa Buinosdwi -
{S31311UBWID [P0 YIIM Spooylnoqybiau a|qo3|om

pup 8|qIssa20p ‘Ay3jpay Joj suolrdo |paJ Buljgoud

:Ag ybnoioq ay3 ssouop saijiuniioddo [9ADI} DAIIOD

pup JJodsupJl 8|qOUIPISNS 3|qOUS 0} SBAI303[qO S1I

Uo SIBAIIBP d7S 8yl ainsu3 : (d1S) up|d [p207 d1691041S

9¢0¢ 01

202 Bulinp s3iod 102 DgD G SS0J4OD siabipYyd

ot A|I@1pbwixoiddp [jpisul |jIm T 8spyd °up|d [pnuup
[DIUBWSIDUI UD UIYIIM ‘6202 Aq S19bipyd A3 00Z J9A0
JBAIIBpP 01 swip up|d Buibioyd A3 s.09D usws|dw|

0€0¢ - v¢oc

G¢0c

Yoo Ag "§20Z Y24PIA AQ 943U90 UMO] By UIyUM gny

®_0>0 2JNJ3S PUD 2J0S O 91094) UOIIDY SPIAA S@SOhOﬁ

11odsupu]

UuoIdY 3AI3I3)|0) B Modsuel]l- S1IDAVL TYNAILXT



This page is intentionally left blank



Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024 Ag e n d a Ite m 6
Page 59

Cheltenham Borough Council
Cabinet — 28 May 2024

Award of rent support grants to voluntary sector
organisations

Accountable member:

Cabinet Member Finance and Assets, Clir Peter Jeffries
Accountable officer:

Deputy Chief Executive, Paul Jones

Ward(s) affected:

All Saints

Key Decision: No
Executive summary:

As part of Cheltenham Borough Council’s wider ambitions to support a thriving
voluntary and community sector (VCS), the council enables VCS groups to rent its
properties through offering a rent support grant scheme.

The current policy was adopted in December 2016 which permits VCS groups to
apply for a rent support grant either at the start of a lease or at the time of a rent
review. Applications are scored against four criteria with the amount of subsidy
awarded being proportionate to the degree to which the applicant meets the criteria.

An application for a rent support grant has been received from Open Door for 39
Grosvenor Street. This report sets out the proposed level of rent support grant to be
awarded.

Recommendations:
1. Cabinet agrees to arent support grant of 72% of current market rent to
Open Door for 39 Grosvenor Street.

2. Cabinet delegates authority to the Participation and Engagement Team
Leader, in consultation with One Legal to agree the terms of a rent
support grant agreement with the applicant.

Page 1 of 9



Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024

Page 60

1. Implications
1.1 Financial, Property and Asset implications

Open Door was previously in receipt of a rent support grant of 80%. Following the
review of their lease terms, cabinet agrees to a new rent support grant of 72% which
will mean an uplift of £1180 per annum to the general fund. Please see appendix 3
for more details.

All usual terms and conditions will be contained within the lease in respect of rent
reviews, insurance, repairs, compliance, etc, and will be monitored on an ongoing
basis to ensure compliance.

Signed off by: Gemma Bell, Director of Finance and Assets,
gemma.bell@cheltenham.gov.uk

1.2Legal implications

Under S123 Local Government Act 1972, leases for a term greater than 7 years
must be for the best consideration reasonably obtainable. The only exception to this
is where the letting at less than best consideration contributes to the 'social,
economic or environmental well-being' of the council's area or residents. Whilst
leases for a term of less than 7 years do not have to be for the best consideration
reasonably obtainable, the council must still have regard to its general fiduciary duty.

Granting a lease at market rent, whilst implementing a policy of grant support, means
that if the tenant at any time fails to meet the grant criteria, there is no complicated
legal mechanism for ensuring that the rent is uplifted to market value: the grant is
simply suspended. Accordingly, the Policy for Property Lettings and Disposals to the
Third Sector, Voluntary and Community Groups was adopted by Cabinet on 13
December 2016.

When considering the giving of financial assistance, the council must ensure that it is
not giving an unlawful subsidy under the Subsidy Control Act 2022 (the Act). The
subsidy control regime has replaced state aid which applied before the UK’s
withdrawal from the EU.

One of the requirements for a subsidy to be present is for financial assistance being
given to an ‘enterprise’ which is defined in the Act as a person (including all legal
entities) who is engaged in an economic activity that entails offering goods or
services on a market. Open Door does not carry out such economic activity so there
will be no subsidy present when providing the proposed rent support grant.

Signed off by: One Legal, legalservices@onelegal.org.uk

1.3 Environmental and climate change implications

Page 2 of 9


mailto:gemma.bell@cheltenham.gov.uk
mailto:legalservices@onelegal.org.uk

Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024

Page 61

There are no direct climate change implications arising from this report, but Open
Door has detailed the measures being taken to respond to climate change and
promote sustainability in its application. Please see appendix 3 for more details.

Signed off by: Maizy McCann, Climate Emergency Officer,
maizy.mccann@cheltenham.gov.uk

1.4 Corporate Plan Priorities
This report contributes to the following Corporate Plan Priorities:

= Ensuring residents, communities and businesses benefit from Cheltenham’s
future growth and prosperity
= Being a more modern, efficient and financially sustainable council

1.5 Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Implications

There are no direct equality implications arising from the recommendations, though
the organisation will continue to promote equality and diversity in line with their own

policy.
1.6 Performance management — monitoring and review

The council will put in place a monitoring process whereby recipients of a rent
support grant will submit a monitoring form to explain the activities that have been
delivered from the premises.

The quality and timeliness of previous monitoring information will be taken into
account, if the applicant wishes to re-apply for a rent support grant at the end of the
four-year period.

2 Background

2.1As part of Cheltenham Borough Council’s wider ambitions to support a thriving
voluntary and community sector, the council enables VCS groups to rent its
properties through offering a rent support grant scheme.

2.2We know that appropriate rent support to community-based organisations and
services can support the viability of such organisations and the services they
provide to the benefit of the social and economic well-being of the town.
However, the Council will continue to encourage voluntary and community sector
organisations to become more self-sufficient and less reliant upon financial
support from the Council.

2.3 A revised rent support grant process was adopted by the council in December
2016. This is based on assessing an application against the following four

Page 3 of 9


mailto:maizy.mccann@cheltenham.gov.uk

Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024

Page 62

outcomes:

e Cheltenham's environmental quality and heritage is protected, maintained
and enhanced

e Sustain and grow Cheltenham’s economic and cultural vitality
e People live in strong and safe communities

e We will work to strengthen the emotional and physical wellbeing of all
Cheltenham residents

2.4The maximum rent support grant that any organisation will be able to apply for
will be 80% of their current market rent and that the assessment process will
determine the level of grant to be offered up to this maximum and will be
staggered incrementally, as follows:

Meeting one outcome —up to 20% grant
Meeting two outcomes —up to 40% grant
Meeting three outcomes —up to 60% grant
Meeting four outcomes —up to 80% grant

2.5Each outcome is subject to a stepped discount between 0 and 20% depending
upon the impact of the defined sub-elements of each outcome.

2.6 Cabinet retains the discretion to award a further grant of 10%, bringing the
maximum rent support grant that any organisation could receive to 90%. This will
only be in exceptional cases and any such decision will only be taken after
detailed consideration of the organisation’s financial and business case for the
rent support.

2.7In addition, the council will scrutinise the applicant’s financial standing and make
an assessment of the following:

e That the reason for applying for the rent support grant is backed up by
the organisation’s financial health in that the grant award will support the
financial viability of the operation of the building

e That the organisation has reasonable longer-term plans in place to be
able to sustain activities being delivered from the building beyond the
term of the grant.

2.8 The offer of a grant will be for a maximum of four years that will be reviewed at
the end of each 12 month period to ensure that the applicant continues to deliver
the activities set out in the original application. The council reserves the right to
either review the grant amount awarded or withdraw it completely if there are
changes to the activities being delivered. In addition, if the organisation is in debt
arrears to the council; the grant will be withdrawn.

3 Reasons for recommendations

Page 4 of 9



Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024

Page 63

3.1The submission from Open Door has been assessed against the criteria detailed
in 2.3.

3.20pen Door demonstrated strong evidence of their contribution to the themes
assessed against, particularly in terms of strengthening the emotional and
physical wellbeing of all Cheltenham residents, through the support, opportunities
and signposting offered to their guests. They also make a significant contribution
in supporting people to live in strong and safe communities through creating a
sense of community, often acting as a safety net for individuals for whom all other
support has failed and involving numerous volunteers in their work.

3.3The recommendation of a rent support grant of 72% is made up of 62% as
recommended by the assessment panel (please see appendix 3 for the
assessment of the submission), plus the discretionary additional 10% awarded by
Cabinet as per paragraph 1.6, given that Open Door provides vital support to
some of the most vulnerable members of our community.

4 Alternative options considered
4.1None

5 Consultation and feedback
5.1None

6 Key risks

6.11f the Council is overly generous in subsidising tenancies with grants, this will
result in reduced income from assets and cumulative impacts on the Council’s
medium term financial strategy.

6.21f appropriate and transparent grant agreements are not put in place, tenants may
be more difficult to remove if they fail to meet the terms of any subsidised letting
arrangement, with the potential for associated adverse publicity for the Council.

6.3 If prospective tenants cannot demonstrate a robust business plan when taking on
property commitments from the Council, there is an increased risk of failure and
associated financial and reputation impacts for the authority.

Report author:

Helen Down, Participation and Engagement Team Leader,
helen.down@cheltenham.gov.uk

Appendices:

Page 5 of 9


mailto:helen.down@cheltenham.gov.uk

Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024

Page 64

I. Risk Assessment

il. Equality Impact Assessment — Screening —(to be included in all Cabinet
and Council reports)

iii. Open Door Rent Support Assessment

Background information:

Report to Cabinet 13 December 2016 “Award of rent support grants to Cheltenham’s
Voluntary and Community Sector Organisations”.

Page 6 of 9



Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024

Appendix 1: Risk Assessment

Risk
ref

Risk description

Risk
owner

Impact
score

(1-5)

Likelihood
score

(1-5)

Initial raw
risk score

(1-25)

Risk
response

Controls / Mitigating
actions

Control /
Action
owner

Deadline for

controls/ actions

If appropriate and transparent
grant agreements are not put
in place, tenants may not
understand the
consequences if they fail to
meet the terms of any
subsidised letting
arrangement.

Helen
Down

2

4

Accept

Rent support grant
agreement to be
put in place, in
conjunction with
One Legal

Helen
Down

July 2024

If prospective tenants cannot
demonstrate a robust
business plan when taking on
property commitments from
the Council, there is an
increased risk of failure and
associated financial and
reputation impacts for the
authority.

Gemma
Bell

Accept

G9 abed

If the grant expires or is
terminated, tenants will
remain responsible for
payment of rent at market
value. This may result in an
increase in arrears.

Gemma
Bell

Accept




Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024

Page 66

Appendix 2: Equality Impact Assessment (Screening)

1.

Identify the policy, project, function or service change

a. Person responsible for this Equality Impact Assessment

Officer responsible: Helen Down Service Area: Communities, Wellbeing
and Partnerships

Title: Participation and Engagement Date of assessment: 2.5.24
Team Leader

Signature: H Down

. Is this a policy, function, strategy, service change or Function

project?
If other, please specify:

c. Name of the policy, function, strategy, service change or project

Award of a rent support grant to a voluntary sector organisation

Is this new or existing? Already exists
and is being

reviewed

Please specify reason for change or development of policy, function, strategy,
service change or project

The rent has been reviewed and the level of rent support provided needs to be
reviewed in line with it.

d. What are the aims, objectives and intended outcomes and who is likely to benefit

from it?
To support a thriving voluntary and community sector (VCS), by enabling VCS

_ groups to rent council owned properties through offering a rent support grant
AIMS:  scheme.

Provision of a rent support grant.

Objectives:



Report for Cabinet, 28 May 2024

Page 67

An affordable level of actual rent paid by a voluntary sector organisation to
Outcomes: maintain their viability in delivering their services to the community.

Benefits: Guests who use the services provided by Open Door.

e. What are the expected impacts?

Are there any aspects, including how it is delivered No
or accessed, that could have an impact on the lives
of people, including employees and customers.

Do you expect the impacts to be positive or Choose an item.
negative?

Please provide an explanation for your answer:
The level of rent support grant recommended means the actual rent paid is manageable for

the organisation, while meeting the objective of also encouraging voluntary and community
sector organisations to become less reliant upon financial support from the Council.

If your answer to question e identified potential positive or negative impacts, or you are
unsure about the impact, then you should carry out a Stage Two Equality Impact
Assessment.

f. Identify next steps as appropriate

Stage Two required No
Owner of Stage Two assessment

Completion date for Stage Two assessment



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972. Page 69

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	5 Updated Climate Action Plan
	Climate Emergency Action Plan v2

	6 Rent Support Grants to Voluntary Sector
	Appendix 3 EXEMPT - Rent Support Assessment Open Door


